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Vision Statement

HKCAAVQ is locally, nationally, regionally and
globally recognised as an efficient, effective,
innovative and accessible quality assurance
agency providing academic and vocational
accreditation and assessment services.

Mission Statement

To safeguard the quality of the academic and
vocational qualifications available to learners
within the Qualifications Framework in Hong
Kong and to strengthen providers’ quality
assurance capability; and

To provide professional advice through
assessment and consulting services and
to develop, promote and disseminate good
practices on quality assurance.

=
N T2

FEBMEBERERNERASAM - 26 - &5
ARRZRARNB - A EAERENE
EIRFERE - R HESBM AR E M
ARAS o

fEs
Ap

RS EERBN N BT R RLEE RS
EEEAT - WHNRFEHEHDEEREL
h o REBFERENIE  REERER
PRELE  EEREETERBOAFEL
it -







Contents
B 4%

Highlights of the Year

FEHY

Chairman’s Message

e

Executive Director’s Report

RBERE

The Council

HER

Operational Review
TEHR &

Academic Accreditation
Bl & ETF

Vocational Accreditation
BEERENE

Assessment

BE R R

Qualifications Register Authority
EREMER

Research, Development and Training

8 R 3E 3
External Liaison and Engagement

IR R

Financial Report

MBHE

Appendices
ff 4%

List of Council Members

TERKNERE

Terms and References of QAC, PAC and FC
EREEEHEEHE

Glossary

Bk

This annual report covers the reporting year from 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2012 in the text and the financial statements
unless stated otherwise

MREFRIGERR - ANER 2 AN R TSHRERE 201144 A1 BHE 201243 A 31 BRFREFE -

03

10

12

16

20
24
29
37
41

50

96

102
104
106



Highlights of the Year

E/
fIE 15 =1 51/

04 /2011

New Guidelines for Qualifications
Assessment

New guidelines for qualifications assessment
took effect on 1 April 2011. The updated
guidelines place greater emphasis on issues
like the location of studies; the origins and the
recognition status of transferred credits; and
for non-local programmes offered in Hong
Kong, the accreditation status of the Hong Kong
operators.

AP 3 HE H 2 R AT AG R 3R 4 SIS RT A
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INQAAHE Conference 2011

The HKCAAVQ participated in the INQAAHE
Conference 2011 in Madrid, Spain, in early April
and presented two papers: one on non-local
learning programme accreditation in Hong
Kong and the other a case study on the capacity
building model for reviewers at the HKCAAVQ.
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Non-local Programme Accreditation
Seminar

With the support of the British Council, the
HKCAAVQ conducted a seminar in London to
inform operators of the latest developments of
its non-local programme (NLP) accreditation
services. Issues such as the implications and
cost benefits, lessons learnt from the NLP
exercises in 2009 and 2010 were shared with
the participants from 19 UK universities and
colleges.
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05/2011

Qualifications Framework Seminar

A briefing seminar was held on 13 May 2011
for operators interested in learning more
about the HKCAAVQ's accreditation services
underpinning the Qualifications Framework
(QF). Representatives from the QF Secretariat
also attended the seminar and shared with
participants the latest developments of the QF.
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Workshop for Operators of Chinese
Catering Programmes

A workshop for operators of Chinese Catering
programmes was held on 17 May 2011 to
introduce to them the HKCAAVQ's newly
developed accreditation tools, as well as the
Qualifications Guidelines for Specifications
of Competency Standards (SCS])-based
programmes and the procedures for collective
accreditation.
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06 /2011

Capability Building for Non-local
Programme Providers

The HKCAAVQ organised a workshop and
a seminar on non-local programme (NLP]
accreditation for operators in the Business
Management discipline on 3 and 24 June
2011. Some 70 participants from 13 operators
attended to prepare themselves for Initial
Evaluation and Programme Validation under
the NLP accreditation framework.
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2011 HEEACT International
Conference

The HKCAAVQ participated in the 2011 Higher
Education Evaluation and Accreditation
Council of Taiwan (HEEACT] International
Conference. As one of the keynote speakers,
the Executive Director shared with participants
the HKCAAVQ's outcome-based accreditation
model and introduced to them the various
capacity building and training activities the
HKCAAVQ provides for specialists.
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08 /2011

Review of New Accreditation Tools
The HKCAAVQ organised five focus group
meetings in August 2017 to collect feedback
on a new set of accreditation tools and the
streamlined processes implemented in
07 / 201 1 September 2010. Over 40 participants shared
their views and provided valuable input to help
us review the effectiveness of, and further

Dialogue with CEOs improve, the accreditation tools.

The HKCAAVQ organised a sharing session N N

with representatives from the Chinese Catering REHFELR

industry to exchange views on human resource AERR20MFSAENRTHAEN MMEEE
development, in-house training, and vocational BRSO EHRBRFAEL O E ARG
accreditation. The gathering stimulated AERENER - BA0ERHELREEERNE
candid discussion and networking between PRHEESR  BRFME(LFEIA -

representatives from the Chinese Catering
industry and the HKCAAVQ.
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09 /2011

Workshop for Property Management
Operators

The HKCAAVQ organised a workshop for
operators in the Property Management industry
on 9 September 2011. The briefing provided
operators with an overview of the Qualifications
Guidelines for SCS-based courses and outlined
| procedures for collective accreditation.
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10 /2011

Presentation on Assessment for
Continuing Education Fund Courses

The HKCAAVQ in partnership with the Labour
and Welfare Bureau and the Federation for
Continuing Education in Tertiary Institutions
(FCE) delivered a presentation on the
assessment service for reimbursable courses
under the Continuing Education Fund to FCE
member institutions on 10 October 2011.
The event was well attended by around 100
participants from 16 institutions.
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APQN/INQAAHE Workshop on Good
Practices

The HKCAAVQ participated in the APQN/
INQAAHE Workshop on Good Practices
in Quality Assurance in Tokyo, Japan, on
25 October 2011 to exchange good practices as
well as explore transferable practices across
member agencies of the Asia-Pacific Quality
Network [APQN] and the International Network
for Quality Assurance Agencies in Higher
Education (INQAAHE).
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Transnational Education Forum

The Deputy Executive Director of the HKCAAVQ
provided a progress report on the policy
context to promote local accreditation of non-
local courses at the Transnational Education
Forum: The Road Ahead’, jointly organised by
the British Council and the FCE on 27 October
2017.
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11/ 2011

Briefing to the Retail Sector

The HKCAAVQ joined hands with the
QF Secretariat to conduct a briefing on
accreditation of in-house training courses for
operators in the retail industry on 9 November
2011. Participants were introduced to the
procedures for collective accreditation and the
accreditation tools to understand the required
standards and the evidence needed to meet the
standards.
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12 /2011

INQAAHE/ENQA Seminar

The Executive Director of the HKCAAVQ gave a
presentation at an international seminar jointly
organised by the INQAAHE and the European
Association for Quality Assurance in Higher
Education in Brussels, Belgium. The event
brought together QA experts from all over the
world to explore the themes of global interest.
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ADB International Consultative
Forum

The HKCAAVQ participated in the International
Consultative Forum on Skills for Inclusive and
Sustainable Growth in Developing Asia-Pacific
in Manila. The Forum aimed to strengthen the
link between policy and practice and to enable
interactions between researchers, practitioners,
developing country representatives, and the
private sector in the area of skills development.
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Opening of the Hong Kong Jockey
Club College

The Hong Kong Jockey Club (HKJC] established
the HKJC College on 14 January 2012. A
total of 14 training courses offered by the HKJC
College have been accredited by the HKCAAVQ.
It is the first non-tertiary institution and non-
professional association in Hong Kong to be
accredited to run programmes up to Level 4 in
the QF.
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02 /2012

Guidelines for Promoting Accredited
Programmes

The HKCAAVQ issued Guidelines for Promoting
Accredited Programmes to promote good
practices among operators and qualifications
granting bodies. The Guidelines took effect on
1 February 2012 and provide the industry with
practical guidance on information contained
in promotional material about programmes

accredited by the HKCAAVQ.
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Specialists Appointment Ceremony

The Specialists Appointment Ceremony was
held on 17 February 2012. More than 160
academics, professionals and experts from a
range of disciplines and industries attended
the Ceremony to celebrate their appointment to
serve the HKCAAVQ on accreditation panels and
to advise on the latest developments in their
respective fields.
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2012 APQN Conference

The HKCAAVQ participated in the 2012
APQN Conference and Annual General
Meeting in Cambodia and presented a paper
on accreditation of Non-local Learning
Programmes in Hong Kong. The Deputy
Executive Director also co-conducted a
workshop with the Malaysian Qualifications
Authority on the development of National
Qualifications Frameworks.
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Staff Attachment Programme

An assessor from the Assessment and
Certification Division of the Council for
Private Education (CPE], Singapore, joined
an attachment to the HKCAAVQ in February
2012. The programme included participation
in an accreditation exercise as observer to
understand the HKCAAVQ's accreditation
model and its execution, and a staff forum for
sharing of knowledge and practices.
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Highlights of the Year & E 5 &

HKCAAVQ Annual Dinner

The HKCAAVQ organised an Annual Dinner on
22 March 2012. With the honourable presence
of the Permanent Secretary for Education, the
gala event was attended by over one hundred
guests and staff to celebrate and recognise the
contribution of all participants in upholding the
quality of education and training in Hong Kong.
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Global Policy Dialogue

The HKCAAVQ participated in a Global Policy
Dialogue organised by the British Council in
Jakarta, Indonesia. The meeting discussed the
new Higher Education Act and its implications
for local and foreign education providers in
Indonesia.
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Chairman’s Message

Martin LIAO, JP BRI, JP
Chairman *J&

The Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications [HKCAAVQ) plays a unique and important
role in quality assurance in Hong Kong. In my first year (2011-
2012) as Chairman of the HKCAAVQ, | am pleased to report that
the Council has successfully carried out its role and responsibility
against a background of major changes in tertiary education
ongoing in Hong Kong.

This year marks a critical juncture of the 3-3-4 Education Reform.
The double cohort year has arrived amidst anticipation with the
tertiary education sector becoming more diversified, vigorous and
competitive. Apart from increase in numbers of operators and
programmes in the self-financing post-secondary education sector
and the vocational education and training sector, we have also
seen a rapid expansion in education services offered by overseas
operators to meet local demand for degree level places.

With this changing new landscape in education, the HKCAAVQ
has put in place innovative and effective measures to meet new
challenges and increasing demand for our services. We have also
been leading the way in supporting the Qualifications Framework
(QF) to ensure that qualifications in Hong Kong are underpinned
by a robust quality assurance mechanism. With the support of
our stakeholders, the year has been productive and fulfilling. The
comprehensive review of HKCAAVQ's activities in this report puts
our work in perspective and ensures our accountability to the
community.
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In November 2011, the Government endorsed the overall
strategies and directions recommended in the Report “Aspirations
for the Higher Education System in Hong Kong” published by
the University Grants Committee (UGC). In the same year,
the Government also launched the improved Qualifications
Framework Support Scheme for operators seeking accreditation
and established the Committee on Self-financing Post-secondary
Education for a macro and strategic overview of the issues of
common interest to the sector. The HKCAAVQ supports the
Government’s initiatives to develop a more integrated approach to
quality assurance, and we stand ready to undertake the mission
entrusted to us. The HKCAAVQ has begun preparation work for
designing a model for external quality audits on self-financed
operations under the aegis of UGC-funded institutions.

At present, the HKCAAVQ is working closely with the Education
Bureau on the QF Credits and Award Title projects, which will lay
an important foundation to support the vertical articulation of
sub-degree qualifications to undergraduate programmes. We are
also in the course of reviewing the Four-Stage Quality Assurance
Process developed since the launch of the QF in 2008. We believe
that these projects and review will help us develop a roadmap to
take us forward to meet demands and expectations, as well as
more opportunities, as we approach the new horizons of education.

During the year, we bid grateful farewell to our former Chairman
Dr. York Liao, who, in his eight years at the helm has built the
HKCAAVQ to the dynamic, innovative and widely recognised
accreditation body it is today. On a sadder note, we lament
the recent passing of Professor Edmond Ko, who served with
distinction as Council Member and Chairman of the Qualifications
and Accreditation Committee and made invaluable contribution to
the development of the robust quality assurance mechanisms in
Hong Kong. To both gentlemen, we express our gratitude.

Finally, I wish to thank my fellow Council Members, our
management and our staff, who have all played their essential part
in helping the Council fulfil its mission and serve the community.
My sincere thanks also go to our many stakeholders, in particular
our institutional and industry partners, for their continued support
in our work and in safeqguarding the quality of education and
training in Hong Kong. We look forward to closer collaboration
with all as we move forward together to face more challenges and
opportunities ahead.

Martin LIAO
Chairman
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Executive Director’s Report

Prof Yiu-Kwan FAN 3B iE$#5%#%, BBS, JP
Executive Director #2® %

2011/12 was a busy and productive year for the Hong Kong Council
for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
(HKCAAVQ). Driven by the rapid expansion of the self-financing
education sector under the New Academic Structure, the HKCAAVQ
experienced a significant increase in the number of accreditation
and assessment exercises conducted in the past year.

As the HKCAAVQ continues to expand its portfolio of quality
assurance work for education and training providers, we also
attach great importance to engaging stakeholders to gather their
views and insights to improve the functions of the HKCAAVQ. The
concerted efforts of the Council and its stakeholders are reflected
in the detailed account of our activities contained in this report.
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Executive Director’s Report 4% =55

Reaching New Horizons

Higher education in Hong Kong is reaching out toward new
horizons. In 2012, there are two cohorts of matriculants, i.e. Form
7 students taking Hong Kong Advanced Level Examination (HKALE)
and Senior Secondary 3 students taking Hong Kong Diploma
of Secondary Education (HKDSE] examination, totalling about
100,000 students competing to enter the post-secondary education
institutions. To meet the increasing needs in the double cohort
year and beyond, new private post-secondary institutions are
being established. We also see an increase in programmes in the
existing self-financing sub-degree sector as well as the vocational
education and training market.

In 2011/12, the HKCAAVQ accredited over 180 programmes in a
wide spectrum ranging from local and transnational education
programmes to in-house training and skills development -
involving qualifications spanning from certificate to bachelor
degree level. We also assessed over 3,000 qualifications,
1,500 Continuing Education Fund courses and 120 Continuing
Professional Development programmes.

Enhancing Services

While our workload has increased, it did not deter us from our
commitment to high standard through continuous review and
improvement of our internal processes. Last year, the HKCAAVQ
launched a new template for Programme Revalidation to assist
operators to prepare accreditation submissions, and developed
a guide to provide operators of Higher Diploma and Associate
Degree programmes with basic and essential information required
for Programme Validation. These measures helped speed up the
process and enhance operators’ understanding of the relevant
standards and requirements.

To promote the quality culture, we organised over 40 capacity
building activities such as training workshops, seminars and
briefings to prepare our specialists, panel members, institutional
partners and programme providers in the vocational sector for
accreditation exercises. Through these events we also shared with
stakeholders the latest developments of our services as well as the
findings and follow-up actions from the Operators’ Survey that we
conduct annually for collecting feedback from our service users.
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Fostering Relations

The HKCAAVQ's role is both the gate-keeper and the gate-opener
in education quality assurance in Hong Kong. The success of
our work depends on the support and cooperation of our quality
assurance partners. Last year, we continued to engage the
community proactively through various liaison activities. We also
reached out to the education providers and potential operators in
the vocational sector such as the Retail, Property Management and
Chinese Catering industries through various events, partnership,
workshops and briefings.

Over the past year, we maintained close relations with quality
assurance agencies worldwide through participation in
international conferences and receiving delegations. We also
visited the offices of the National Recognition Information Centre
for the United Kingdom (UK NARIC) and the National Office of
Overseas Skills Recognition of Australian Education International
(AEI-NOOSR) to share knowledge and practice; and received an
assessor from the Council for Private Education (CPE], Singapore,
for a short-term placement at the HKCAAVQ. As transnational
education continues to grow, these global networks and
partnerships keep us informed and help us better carry out our
mission to safequard quality and reinforce Hong Kong's position as
a regional education hub.

Planning for the Future

The education environment in Hong Kong and the rest of the
world is changing fast. To maintain a robust quality assurance
system, the HKCAAVQ has embarked on a review of our Four-
Stage Quality Assurance Process to evaluate its effectiveness
and to study whether this model needs to be modified to better
meet stakeholder expectations. We are now in the course of data
analysis and process development, and the consultation on a
revised model is expected to take place in the last quarter of 2012.
This summer, we will move our office to larger premises in Siu Sai
Wan. We believe this new office will accommodate our growth and
allow us to achieve better levels of service.
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The HKCAAVQ developed its first three-year strategic plan in 2009.
The time has come for us to take stock of what we have achieved
and set our future direction in the next three-year strategic plan
for 2013-2016. The strategic plan will be our roadmap for the
journey of continuous improvement, sustainable development and
advancement to new horizons and beyond.

Prof Yiu-Kwan FAN, BBS, JP
Executive Director
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The Council ;¥ EF

The Council

The Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications (HKCAAVQ) was formed under the
HKCAAVQ Ordinance (Cap 1150]. As the Accreditation Authority
and Qualifications Register Authority under the Hong Kong
Qualifications Framework, the HKCAAVQ provides quality
assurance and assessment services to education and training
institutions, course providers and the general public. In addition
to its statutory roles, the HKCAAVQ also provides advisory and
consultancy services in education qualifications and standards to
government bureaux and professional organisations in Hong Kong
and the Asia-Pacific region.

The Council is composed of members appointed by the Chief
Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. As of
March 2012, the Council membership maintains its international
perspective by including six overseas members and 14 local
members. Its composition reflects expertise and experience in
quality assurance, education and training as well as links with
industry and the Education Bureau. Non-local members come
primarily from countries with well-established external quality
assurance systems. They provide valuable advice and views from
around the world, allowing us to benchmark the HKCAAVQ's
approaches with the latest international standards and good
practices.

The Council meets formally twice a year with meetings of local
members held between full Council meetings.

The work of the Council is supported by three committees: the
Qualifications and Accreditation Committee, the Personnel and
Administration Committee and the Finance Committee. Each
Committee has its own terms of reference, which are detailed in
the Appendix.

The Secretariat

The daily operation of the HKCAAVQ is undertaken by the
Secretariat under the leadership of the Executive Director who is
an ex-officio member of the Council.

As of end of March 2012, the HKCAAVQ Secretariat had 73 full-time
staff, most of whom are quality assurance practitioners, seasoned
trainers or education professionals. There are also two part-time
consultants who provide legal advice and information technology
support.
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Operational Review
THEHEH

Academic Accreditation Z{ii&EFEE

The HKCAAVQ is empowered under the Accreditation of
Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance (Cap 592)
to provide accreditation services to operators or assessment
agencies offering education and training programmes. Our
academic accreditation services cover programmes offered by
post-secondary institutions at postgraduate, degree and sub-
degree levels. We also provide accreditation services for non-
local learning programmes that are registered or exempted from
registration under the Non-local Higher and Professional Courses
(Regulation) Ordinance (Cap 493) and conduct Institutional Reviews
(IR) for institutions seeking registration under the Post Secondary
Colleges Ordinance (Cap 320).

Local Programme Accreditation

Upon the implementation of the New Academic Structure (334],
there has been a substantial increase in requests from private
institutions seeking IR for registration under Cap 320 for degree-
awarding status, as well as for HKCAAVQ Programme Validation
(PV] of their planned degree programmes in order to be ready for
the "double cohort’ of students in 2012/2013.

Requests for academic accreditation in diverse disciplines
continued to increase. Apart from the more traditional
programmes in Business Administration, Languages, Social Work,
Media and the Arts, programmes in Health Science, Nursing,
Pharmaceutical Studies, Engineering, Environmental Studies and
Sports Studies began to figure prominently too.

AFERRB(RM MR EEFERGK
) (F5RE) BRI REFERENF
BER - RIEHHE REIRENE N
EBYFTZMBEITIIE - RIIHSZET
ERBUHRREE FHE RBRENMH
KA BAKEIBARIE o thID - I
R RERBECGEASEREEHE
(RE)IREI) (493 %) T fiskiERHE
MR IEAR M RIZIR AT E R - LA
RTRIE(E L2 D)) (5320 %) 5E
B EBE A ETTE IR AT ©

A REE

BEE = = NEHIMHETT - 201213 F 37
Esfl 2 WeaERENERA
REEZ B ERRBBRRTERS
e mAR R (H LB &Hl) (320 %) &+
M BE LB - R PFSIRE - &
LRI - N BTN A2 AR R ) £
(RIREITRIZEE -

EFTERRIIMSMAERFHTEE
e S RRBERITRREZ - BRER
SHIAEER  BX  HEMBREK
BBASN - — L BB T ERE
REME . RS BB T2
2 REEREEBETEELM -



In the reporting period, the HKCAAVQ conducted two IR exercises
for degree granting status, respectively for the Centennial College,
a member of The University of Hong Kong (HKU) Group; and the
Technological and Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong (THE-1),
a member institution of the Vocational Training Council (VTCJ.
Apart from the IR exercises, the HKCAAVQ also conducted two
Initial Evaluations (IE) for two operators, one intending to register
under Cap 320; and a total of 25 Programme Validation exercises
and five Programme Revalidation exercises for 17 operators.

In the same period, the HKCAAVQ processed requests from
11 operators for substantial changes to 35 programmes to adapt
them to the arrangements for the new Senior Secondary Education
System from September 2012. We also conducted a Periodic
Review of Shue Yan University in 2011, five years on from when the
institution first attained university status.

Non-local Learning Programme Accreditation

Since the successful pilot exercise conducted in 2009/10, the
HKCAAVQ has been accrediting Non-local Learning Programmes
(NLP] registered/exempted under the Non-local Higher and
Professional Education (Regulation) Ordinance (Cap 493). The
NLP accreditation service quality-assures programmes offered
in Hong Kong leading to awards of non-local institutions. An
NLP accredited by the HKCAAVQ enjoys similar status to locally-
accredited programmes, and its qualification can be recognised
under the Hong Kong Qualifications Framework (QF) and placed on
the Qualifications Register (QR).
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The HKCAAVQ conducts the NLP accreditation exercises by
phase and by discipline to accommodate the large number of
accreditation requests. The discipline covered in the reporting year
was General Business, with the participation of 12 collaborations
involving 17 programmes coming from the United Kingdom and
Australia. The range of local operator partners included a private
operator, an extension arm of a university and a publicly funded
institution. The next two phases of NLP accreditation exercises for
the Accounting and Finance and the Hotel/Tourism Management
and Supply Chain Management disciplines have been scheduled
from May to November 2012.

Streamlined Procedures for Preparing
Accreditation Documents

Upon the successful launch of user-friendly templates and
streamlined procedures for operators in 2010, a new template for
Programme Revalidations was also designed and developed in this
reporting period to assist operators to provide evidence required
for revalidation and to enhance operators’ understanding and
efficiency in their preparation of submission documentation. The
HKCAAVQ will continue to explore different ways of improving our
accreditation services for both local and non-local programmes.

Looking Forward

With the implementation of the new Senior Secondary Education
System, it is anticipated that there will be an even higher demand
for post-secondary education and lifelong learning. As the
Accreditation Authority under the QF, the HKCAAVQ will continue
our long-standing commitment to uphold and improve the quality
of post-secondary education in Hong Kong.
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Breakdown of academic programmes validated or revalidated (1 April 2011 - 31 March 2012)

TR FXBENEMARELE (201164 A1HE20129F3H31H)

Local Programme Validation

it REEBEF

2
Advanced Diploma
BEXE

12
Bachelor Degree

Non-Local Programme Validation
k= dva

FAMREIMEF

15
Bachelor Degree
B8

Local Programme Revalidation

it REEE 9

Associate Degree /
Higher Diploma
B2 L/EHRE

13

2
Bachelor Degree
S8

Associate Degree /
Higher Diploma
BB +/ERSUR

Total 2% : 47

Local Programme Validation

it RIREE

M Bachelor Degree
218 : 12

W Associate Degree / Higher Diploma
B2 L/EHUR 13

Local Programme Revalidation
RiREEE

M Bachelor Degree
B8 :2

M Associate Degree / Higher Diploma
BIBL/mBOR : 3

Non-Local Programme Validation
FARMREEREF

M Bachelor Degree
B8 15

@ Advanced Diploma
BESOR ¢ 2

Breakdown of local degree programmes offered by institutions with Programme Area Accreditation status

[T April 2011 - 31 March 2012)
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Programme Area 22} £i[E No. of Programme #H

The Hong Kong Academy of Performing Arts &#E& 20
Music &%

Dance &

Film and Television E& & ER

Theatre & Entertainment Arts E& & RU/EE iy

Drama ;B!

Hong Kong Shue Yan University &i&#{- K&

History S

General Business Administration 434 TiE
Economics #&%

Accounting &%t

Chinese Language and Chinese Literature ABI5E X 302
English Language and English Literature ZEIFE K& X2
Journalism and Mass Communication & KXREE
Sociology ft&2

Psychology /32

Social Work #t& T{E

Counselling and Psychology #§%8 K /[ 22

1
1

Total &A% 16
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Vocational Accreditation ¥ & FiE

In the reporting year, the HKCAAVQ continued to act and respond
proactively to the increasing demand for accreditation and
consultancy services in the vocational education and training
(VET) sector. With the launch of the Hong Kong Diploma for
Secondary Education (HKDSE], the HKCAAVQ has been conducting
benchmarking studies for various qualifications and facilitating the
implementation of the New Academic Structure.

Extensive Scope of Accreditation Service

In 2011/12, the HKCAAVQ conducted Initial Evaluation (IE) for
34 operators from diverse backgrounds and conducted 141
Programme Validations (PV) in a wide-range of industry sectors.
These operators came from public organisations, long-established
education/training institutes, non-governmental organisations
and commercial corporations of different scales. Employing
the fitness-for-purpose approach, we validated a wide range of
programmes in areas such as pre-employment training, in-house
training, in-service training and skills development. During
the reporting year, 485 programmes were also operated by the
Vocational Training Council (VTC] under the Programme Area
Accreditation (PAA] status.
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The HKCAAVQ moderates the Specification of Competency
Standards (SCS) developed by the respective Industry Training
Advisory Committees (ITACs). The SCSs identify the specific
outcome standards required for different Qualifications Framework
(QF) levels for different industries. During the year, we validated
58 SCS-based programmes for the Beauty Care, Chinese Catering
and Property Management industries.

Apart from accrediting programmes of specific natures, the
HKCAAVQ also plays an important role in the quality assurance
of Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL) under the QF. The RPL
mechanism enables employees of various industries to receive
formal recognition of the knowledge, skills and experience they
have acquired over time. In the reporting period, the HKCAAVQ
accredited RPL Assessment Agencies for the industries of
Automotive, Jewellery and Logistics.

Consultancy Service and the New Academic
Structure

Benchmarking study

The HKCAAVQ was commissioned by the Education Bureau (EDB]
to conduct a benchmarking study for ten selected Applied Learning
(ApL) courses of the New Senior Secondary Curriculum against
the standards of the HKDSE. The study, which employed both
quantitative and qualitative methods, was completed in July 2011.
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The HKCAAVQ was also entrusted to conduct a similar
benchmarking study for the Yi Jin Diploma (YJD), which is a new
qualification under the new Senior Secondary Education System.
The result of this study showed that YJD was comparable to the
attainment of Level 2 in five subjects, including Chinese and
English, in the HKDSE. Another benchmarking study for the
Mathematics modules of YJD is underway and expected to be
completed in April 2012.

Quality Assurance for Applied Learning Courses

To ensure the quality of the ApL courses, the HKCAAVQ was
engaged by the EDB to conduct quality assurance [QA) visits to
course providers. In the reporting period, the HKCAAVQ conducted
QA visits to 11 ApL courses which were delivered by six different
course providers in the post-secondary education sector.

Continuous Enhancement of Accreditation Service

The HKCAAVQ makes continuous efforts to further improve our
service and to keep pace with the development of the VET sector.
In August 2011, the HKCAAVQ conducted a comprehensive review
to evaluate the effectiveness of the new set of accreditation tools
that was implemented in September 2010.

Through the use of the tools and the associated process
improvements the average processing time for vocational
accreditation exercises was shortened from 20 weeks
to 12 weeks. The feedback collected showed that the self-
assessment checklist and the list of requisite evidence against
each accreditation criterion helped operators in the preparation of
accreditation documents. In response to the views collected from
the stakeholders, new tools were developed for the processing of
combined IE and PV exercises.

In view of the growing demand for accreditation of Higher Diploma
(HDJ) and Associate Degree [AD] programmes, the HKCAAVQ
developed a guide in February 2012 for the preparation of
accreditation documents for PV of HD/AD programmes. It provides
the operators with basic and essential information required for
PV, as well as templates for the major items listed in this guide.
Meetings with first-time potential operators were arranged to
enhance their understanding of the accreditation criteria.
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Collaboration with the VET Sector

The success of the HKCAAVQ in serving the VET sector lies in
mutual understanding. To this end, we are actively engaged in
communication with our stakeholders in different settings and
collecting their feedback for enhancing our services. During
the reporting year, the HKCAAVQ continued its representation in
the ITACs, which are set up by the Government for employers,
employees, professional bodies and other stakeholders in
particular industries.

We also reached out to key stakeholders in the VET sector through
various briefing sessions or tailor-made workshops to acquaint
them with the accreditation criteria and procedures. Over the
past year, the HKCAAVQ, in partnership with the QF Secretariat,
conducted a number of briefing sessions for potential operators
in the Logistics, Property Management, Retail and Automotive
industries, and introduced to them the procedures for collective
accreditation and the new set of accreditation tools.
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Looking Forward

The emergence of continuing education and lifelong learning as
a key strategy of Hong Kong's education and training policy has
led to an increasing demand for accreditation services, in terms
of diversity and quantity, from the VET sector. In response to the
increasing demand, the HKCAAVQ will continue to explore ways to
collaborate with our key stakeholders to extend and enhance our
services to assure the quality of vocational education and training
in Hong Kong.
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Assessment 2F Kk REEZ

The HKCAAVQ provides a range of qualifications and course
assessment services for the general public, organisations, and
government bureaux/departments. Our assessment work covers
individual qualifications awarded by granting bodies outside
Hong Kong, non-local courses leading to higher academic
and professional qualifications for registration under the Non-
local Higher and Professional Education (Regulation) Ordinance
(Cap 493), Continuing Education Fund (CEF) reimbursable courses,
and Continuing Professional Development (CPD] programmes for
Insurance Intermediaries and Estate Agents.

Qualifications Assessment

The HKCAAVQ offers a non-binding professional opinion on
whether the totality of an overseas educational qualification of an
individual meets the standard of a particular level of qualification
in Hong Kong. We are also engaged by the Education Bureau
to provide qualifications assessment services for prospective
teachers who obtain qualifications from outside Hong Kong and
wish to apply for teacher registration in Hong Kong.

Compared to the last financial year, the number of assessed cases
in this reporting period increased from 2,546 to 3,008, representing
a growth of 18%. The cases processed this year are categorised in
the following areas:

e By source of application
e By level of major qualifications
e By place of award of major qualifications
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Assessment of Non-local Courses

The HKCAAVQ is appointed by the Registrar of Non-local Higher
and Professional Education Courses to provide professional
advice as to whether a particular course delivered in Hong Kong
leading to a non-local higher and professional qualification meets
the registration criteria stipulated in the Non-local Higher and
Professional Education (Regulation) Ordinance (Cap 493). We
also advise the Registrar whether a registered non-local course
continues to meet the registration criteria through annual
reassessments.

During the reporting year, the HKCAAVQ conducted an internal
review of its non-local course assessment process. As a result, we
streamlined the assessment approach, enhanced the transparency
of our assessment criteria and improved our communications with
the Non-local Courses Registry.

The demand for assessment of non-local courses remained high
in the reporting period. This year, we processed 574 non-local
courses assessment cases (70 new applications, 363 annual
returns and 141 changes of applications), representing a 15%
increase compared to the last reporting period. In particular, the
number of new applications increased by 75%, while the numbers
of annual return and change of applications increased by 8% and
15% respectively.
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Breakdown of new applications for non-local course assessment (1 April 2011 - 31 March 2012)
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By geographic origin
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Assessment of CEF Courses

The HKCAAVQ is commissioned by the Labour and Welfare
Bureau (LWB] to assess the Continuing Education Fund (CEF)
reimbursable courses to ensure that these courses meet the CEF's
requirements in areas such as course contents, learning activities
and teaching premises. The HKCAAVQ also conducts surprise
audit visits to ascertain whether the CEF courses are operated in
compliance with the approved conditions determined by the LWB.

This year, the HKCAAVQ enhanced our internal procedures
to shorten the assessment process. We revised the web text,
introduced new guidance notes to the applicants and arranged a
briefing to the CEF course providers in conjunction with the LWB
to facilitate better understanding of the assessment process. The
measures were found to be effective in reducing the assessment
time for new applications without compromising quality of the
service.

In the reporting period, the HKCAAVQ conducted 80 surprise
audit visits and assessed 1,484 applications, of which 361 were
new applications and 1,123 were applications for amendments
to registered CEF reimbursable courses. The number of new
application has increased slightly this year by 5%.
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Breakdown of the new applications for assessment of CEF reimbursable courses (1 April 2011 - 31 March 2012)

FFREEERE S RIENF RGBT (2011F4H1HE2012463H31H)

By Self-accrediting

By Non-self-accrediting

Type of Courses Institutions Course Providers
RIZER HE{THEREERE HFBETAHEREEME
B A
Business Services 3R 76 14
Financial Services & Bt ART 59 1
Creative Industries BIE T 38 22
Tourism Jifiz 21 0
Language #BX 4 1
Logistics ¥/ 1 1
Design (Product and Digital) &t (Em kB RET) 5 65
Interpersonal and Intrapersonal Skills for the Workplace 10 0
TERIRI AR R ABEA A B8
SCS-based BENIRAEAARIZ 2 41
Total &% 216 145



Assessment of CPD Programmes

In the last reporting year, the HKCAAVQ continued to assess the
Continuing Professional Development (CPD] programmes for the
Insurance Authority (IA) and the Estate Agents Authority (EAA).
The service agreement between the HKCAAVQ and IA has been
renewed until May 2014.

During the reporting period, 107 new applications, 219 annual
re-assessments and 206 changes of applications were processed
under the Insurance Intermediaries Quality Assurance Scheme
(IIQAS]). Compared to the previous reporting period, there was
a growth of 1% in new applications but a fall of 1% and 17% in
the other two areas respectively. In the EAA's CPD Scheme, 11
new applications, 57 annual re-assessments and five changes
of applications were assessed, representing a 10% rise in new
applications but an 8% and 90% decrease in the other two areas as
compared to figures in the previous reporting period.
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Breakdown of assessed CPD programmes for IA and EAA (1 April 2011 - 31 March 2012)
AR AR A R E R IR EFEAERIZRE (201154 1HE201293H31H)
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Looking Forward

In 2011, staff members of the HKCAAVQ visited the National
Recognition Information Centre for the United Kingdom (UK
NARIC), and the National Office of Overseas Skills Recognition of
Australian Education International (AEI-NOOSR), to benchmark our
assessment models, policy and guiding principles in qualifications
assessment with international standards and practices. We also
attended the 2011 UK NARIC Annual Conference to learn about
the latest developments in qualifications assessment in the
international arena.

To cope with the ever rising demands for our various types of
assessment services, the HKCAAVQ will continue to exchange good
practices with overseas qualifications assessment agencies and
explore different ways to enhance the effectiveness and efficiency
of our work. One of the improvement measures planned is the
enhancement of the information technology system in processing
applications for qualifications assessment. We believe this
initiative will help improve the quality of our assessment services
and the project is expected to begin in the last quarter of 2012.
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Qualifications Register Authority EE &M E 5

The Qualifications Register (QR) is an on-line database of
qualifications recognised under the Qualifications Framework (QF).
Since its official launch in May 2008, the QR has had increasing
usage by operators and learners with the inclusion of a wide range

of academic and vocational education and training courses in the
QR.

Increased Entries on the QR

The QR publishes a full spectrum of qualifications ranging
from academic to vocational and continuing education. ALl
qualifications registered on the QR are quality-assured through
robust accreditation processes. As at March 2012, the QR
contained a total of 7,043 qualifications, including new entries
from the Joint University Programmes Admissions System (JUPAS)
institutions and qualifications obtained through the Recognition
of Prior Learning (RPL) mechanism by the Appointed Assessment
Agencies. To assist the JUPAS institutions to upload their
qualifications onto the QR accurately and smoothly, the HKCAAVQ
arranged discussions with individual institutions on a needs basis.

EREME—EARNELERNE - &
JIEERBERAEENER - EEAM
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Number of current qualifications on QR by accreditation body / qualification type (March 2012)

EFEMBEBEREYE IRV E R EXEFAIEFIE7)(20129F3A)

252

3,025
43%

3,766
53%

Total #% : 7,043

M Self-accrediting(UGC-funded sector
includes CityU, CUHK, HKBU, HKIEd,
HKU, HKUST, LU & PolyU; JARC; and
OUHK)

BITFIE(RAE S AR - BFERA -
PR RA B B BER - E|A
ER BREERNZER  URAHAS)
3,025 (43%)

M Non Self-accrediting
JEE 177V 3,766 (53%)

B Recognition of Prior Learning from
Appointed Assessment Agencies
FBOBEEFER I T ARENERE
252 (4%)
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Number of current qualifications on QR by level (March 2012]
BEAMEEERE B (12EFERFIZ5)(2012F3H]

Level 7
205

Level 6
899
13%

Level 5
762
1M%

Level 4
1,043

3%
Level 1
1,416
20%

1,634
23%

Level 3
1,084
15%

Level 2

Total &% :

M Level 1
HA1
1,416 (20%)

Level 2
RHl2
1,634 (23%)

Hlevel3
RA3
1,084 (15%)

M Level 4
B4
1,043 (15%)

Number of current qualifications on QR by area of study / training (March 2012)
BREAMEENERHE (1REE /[ 15:)|#k2)57)(2012F3H)
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Enhancement of the QR System

Computer Hardware Upgrade

In order to cope with the growing demand for uploading
qualifications onto the QR, the HKCAAVQ upgraded the existing
computer equipment in 2011 to pave the way for growth and to
meet future expectations. The new QR system computer hardware
and software commenced operation in February 2012.

QR Usability Analysis

The HKCAAVQ conducted a comprehensive analysis of the QR
website in 2011. The analysis, which comprised a heuristic
evaluation, focus groups and an online survey, engaged a wide
range of stakeholders including the Education Bureau (EDBJ,
education and training providers, learners and members from the
Industry Training Advisory Committees (ITACs). The findings and
recommendations arising from this analysis will form the basis
of the system enhancement for further improvement of the QR
website.

Billing and Refund

On 1 August 2011, the EDB announced improvements to
the Qualifications Framework Support Scheme (QFSS]. All
qualifications published in the QR, irrespective of the profit-making
status of providers and the funding source of their qualifications
are now eligible for full registration and hosting fee subsidies.
In response to the Government's initiative, the HKCAAVQ
embarked on a QR system enhancement project that included the
modification of billing and the development of a refund module.
The enhancement is targeted for completion in the fourth quarter
of 2012.

Advertising Monitoring

To maintain the integrity of the QR and ensure that the public get
accurate information about quality-assured qualifications offered
in Hong Kong, the HKCAAVQ monitors the advertisements and
promotional materials relating to QF-recognised qualifications.
Over the past year we maintained close communication
with programme providers to ensure that they have a clear
understanding of the prevailing guidelines for advertisements
relating to the QF and comply with the requirements stipulated
in the Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
Ordinance (Cap 592).
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Looking Forward

In the reporting period, we recorded 509,512 "hits’ on the QR
website, which is an increase of 31% when compared to the figure
of the previous reporting year. The QR website recorded the
highest number of users in July and August 2011 when the results
of the public examinations were released.

With the implementation of the “334" New Academic Structure, we
anticipate an even higher usage of the QR in the 2012/13 academic
year for school leavers looking for multiple pathways that are
quality assured under the QF. As the QR Authority, the HKCAAVQ
will continue to perform its statutory functions to administer the
QR and to ensure all the information on it is accurate, reliable and

up to date.
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Research, Development and Training #ff3% K& =3

The HKCAAVQ conducts research to inform practice and to support
policy development. It also runs training events to build up the
capacity of programme providers, specialists / panel members
and staff in preparation for accreditation processes. As a leading
quality assurance agency in the region, it maintains best practice
in quality enhancement through internal review and monitoring
of its services as well as dissemination of research findings and
practices locally and overseas.

Four-stage QA Process Review

In March 2011, the HKCAAVQ embarked on a review of the Four-
stage Quality Assurance (QA] Process, an accreditation model
introduced in May 2008 to underpin the Qualifications Framework
(QF). The purpose of the Review is to evaluate the effectiveness
of the current approach, particularly in vocational accreditation,
taking into account local quality requirements, the current
situation in the education and training sector in Hong Kong and
international developments in quality assurance.
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The Review is conducted under the leadership of a Steering
Committee, which comprises local and non-local HKCAAVQ
Council Members, expert members as well as representatives
from the Education Bureau (EDB) and the QF Secretariat. The
Review has five phases: fact finding, data analysis and development
, consultation, pilot test and implementation.

In the reporting period, the HKCAAVQ conducted a wide range of
activities for the first phase of the Review. A total of 19 focus group
meetings were arranged, involving 126 stakeholders including
programme providers, panel and staff members of the HKCAAVQ.
Apart from face-to-face consultation, we also conducted an
online survey to gather views from overseas panel members and
invited members of the Steering Committee to observe some of
our accreditation exercises. The findings were supplemented
by internal analysis of the accreditation reports, review of
international practices, as well as proposals received from two
groups of local higher education institutions.

The data analysis and process development will be presented to
the HKCAAVQ Council for consideration in the third quarter of
2012, and further consultation is expected to take place in the last
quarter of 2012 followed by a pilot programme.
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Focus groups meeting for Four-stage QA Process Review organised in 2011/12

2011/12F B 8770y [IEERE R IRFBRES | FRE/HEDA

No. of meetings FF#A X &

Programme providers mriz&i#E 9
Panel members 5T/ |\ B 7
Staff members RS 3

total &% 19

No. of participants Z2E2 A 2
61

49

16

126



Continuous Support to Non-local Programme (NLP)
Accreditation Services

The HKCAAVQ conducted a seminar in London in April 2011 with
the support of the British Council to inform non-local programme
providers about the latest developments in our Non-local
Programme (NLP] Accreditation Services. Issues such as the
implications and cost benefits and lessons learnt from the NLP
exercises in 2009 and 2010 were shared with participants from 19
universities and colleges in the United Kingdom.

At the overseas NLP seminar in April 2011 and in two local
workshops held in September 2011 and February 2012, the
HKCAAVQ conducted demand forecast surveys with participants
so as to plan the forthcoming accreditation schedule. The surveys
covered non-local learning programmes in the Accounting and
Finance Discipline, the Hotel / Tourism Management Discipline,
the Supply Chain Management Disciplines and the other remaining
disciplines that were not covered in 2009 and 2010. It is anticipated
that the first NLP accreditation cycle will come to an end in 2013.
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Gauging Feedback for Continuous Enhancement of
Services

The HKCAAVQ collects feedback from panel members and
programme providers on our accreditation services, as well as
from individuals and institutions using other HKCAAVQ services.
The surveys, conducted primarily through an online platform,
form part of our internal quality assurance process for continuous
enhancement.

Reports of the surveys are reviewed by the Council; findings and
follow-up actions are shared with respondents during activities
such as training workshops or through written reports circulated
to respondents. In 2012, we have commissioned a professional
agency to undertake the annual Operators” Survey. Data collected
from the surveys are kept in strictest confidence and are used
for improvement purposes only. The findings have also been
considered by the Steering Committee when reviewing the Four-
stage QA Process.

Consultancy Services

The HKCAAVQ has been commissioned by the Agriculture,
Fisheries and Conservation Department (AFCD] to conduct a
three-year Comparative Study of Veterinary Qualifications. In the
reporting period, the HKCAAVQ conducted three on-site visits to
the China Agricultural University in November 2011, the Huazhong
Agricultural University in December 2011 and the Nanjing
Agricultural University in January 2012. The remaining visits to
other selected universities in Mainland China, Taiwan and Europe
have been scheduled for 2012/13
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Training and Capacity Building

As of February 2012, there were 1,315 Specialists on the specialists
register. The range of Specialists is indicated in the following

figures.

Non-local Specialists
FARMER
222

Academic Disciplines
)
627
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Number of Local and Non-local
Specialists

A E R A B R AR
M [ ocal Specialists
AHEZK 1093

M Non-local Specialists

AR ER ¢ 222

Local Specialists

A HR

1093

Industries
1%
688

Number of Specialists from industies and
academic disciplines

AT RBRFERAY
M Industries
7% - 688

M Academic Disciplines
275 627
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The HKCAAVQ offers various types of capacity building activities
to prepare programme providers, specialists and staff for
accreditation exercises. These include training workshops,
briefings, seminars and the production of information documents
such as the Training Manual and e-newsletter QALink for its
Specialists. Apart from the bi-monthly training workshops for
operators, the HKCAAVQ also runs tailor-made in-house training
for programme providers. In the reporting year, three workshops
of this kind were arranged, involving 97 participants.

To provide better support to panel members, especially those not
residing in Hong Kong, to participate in training workshops prior
to the on-site visit, the HKCAAVQ initiated a pilot test of online
training in December 2011. The training module comprises 12
sessions on questioning techniques at on-site visit meetings with
operator representatives. The outcome from the pilot will form
part of the review for further development of the online training
platform.
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Breakdown of briefings and workshops (1 April 2011 - 31 March 2012)
ArEBEMEN G R T EG 2 H (2011F4A1HZE201243H31H)

Number of
o Number of Number of Programme
Targets Types of activities Sessions Participants Providers
. ion rticipa vider
oEY EBER i ‘ s
EIREH SHEAH SHENREE M
EHHE
Briefing N & 5 198 84
Overseas briefing /IMEN & 1 23 19
Programme providers Workshop T{E¥s 8 253 119
AR & Tailor-made In-house Training
Workshop / Seminar 3 97 3
EENEEI TIED /e
o Appointment Ceremony Z{T#i& 1 166 NA N@EHA
Specialists : s e .
. Meeting / Briefing @&/ N < 2 8 NA “~iEF
\ Workshop TE¥y b 66 NA iEF
On-line Training #3_E£53 NA TNEA 8 NA @M
Staff _ .
> Forum 3 3 88 NA TRiEF
BE

In addition to the above training activities, the HKCAAVQ also held BPMAUTITEMNREE PREMA

another 14 specific workshops and briefings for operators in the B BT 145 ERBEENENE - [
vocational sector to introduce them to the procedures for collective T AR R R BRI ER - A KR8
accreditation and accreditation criteria and processes. The events FPEMRRF ©

were well attended by organisations and operators from the

following industries and associations: ‘ ﬁéﬁfi )
e FHHURE
» Automotive o N AIEH
e Chinese Catering o BBAEENEEE
e Dairy Farm Group o KEX
» Hong Kong Productivity Council o VI
e Jewellery o MFEEHEH¥
e Logistics e TEX
e Property Management Sector s HBEEEHRE

* Retail
e Scout Association of Hong Kong



Operational Review T {E3#f%&

Looking Forward

The HKCAAVQ will continue to explore ways to better meet the
needs and expectations of the education sector, and to work
closely with our stakeholders to enhance their quality assurance
capacities. The HKCAAVQ will begin the consultation and pilot
tests of the Refined Model of the Four-stage QA Process Review
in the last quarter of 2012. For continuous enhancement of our
quality assurance work and services, we will also embark on an
external review in 2014.
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The HKCAAVQ attaches great importance to communication with
our stakeholders - programme operators, professional bodies and
authorities, other quality assurance agencies worldwide and the
general public. To facilitate exchanges and information sharing,
the HKCAAVQ organises different activities from time to time; we
also actively engage in activities both locally and overseas to share
knowledge and best practices.

Facilitating Local Exchange

The HKCAAVQ holds seminars, workshops and briefings to inform
our stakeholders about the latest developments in our services
and local and international quality assurance standards and
practices. We also arrange various kinds of training to build the
capacity of programme providers, specialists and panel members.
During the reporting period, over 40 activities of these kinds were
organised, involving institutional stakeholders as well as others
in the vocational sector from the Automobile, Logistic, Retail,
Property Management and Chinese Catering industries.

External Liaison and Engagement

HERTOEREAFNDENSE - I
BRRELEME BXER BIHN
FI~ ERFHHERRERBALTR
KRB ROITRERER - (REMZR
ATHRR - AEBR2EGRINES) -
D EERRBAMFHMRFERRA -

A 3R

HEREBRENAFTE - TIEHME®R
2 [AFDENETERRBE REAIN
BEREBELENSHER - KA AR
BEMRE TERIRMNTENEKE
B ELEAEINER) - THMEHAN - &K
TIER9% T B340 5 RERES) - BRERT

RERERBZGE  HWEE - -UF- T
& MEEENFXRRETERRD
fﬁ °



External Liaison and Engagement ¥f p B %

Over the past year, the HKCAAVQ maintained its representation
in the Industry Training Advisory Committees (ITACs) and their
sub-committees. These regular dialogues kept us abreast of
the industries” developments and demands. In August 2011,
we organised five focus group meetings to collect feedback
from operators and panel members on our newly developed
accreditation tools with a view to evaluate their effectiveness and
enhance our streamlined processes. The HKCAAVQ also conducts
an annual online survey to gauge feedback from panel members
and programme providers on its services.

To enhance public understanding of our services, the HKCAAVQ
reaches out to its stakeholders through presentations at various
events organised by other local education and training bodies. In
2011, we were invited by the Education Bureau to give a talk to local
career teachers on our qualifications assessment service, and
by the Federation of Continuing Education in Tertiary Institutions
(FCE) to give a presentation to its member institutions on our
assessment of Continuing Education Fund (CEF) courses. We
also participated in the Transnational Education Forum organised
by the British Council to introduce to participants our Non-local
Learning Programme (NLP) accreditation service.
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Building International Networks

The HKCAAVQ continues to maintain strong networks with other
quality assurance agencies around the world by participating and
presenting in international conferences, visiting and receiving
delegations and arranging staff exchange programme. These
activities enable us to benchmark our approaches against
international good practice, leading to continuous enhancement in
our work and services.

In the reporting period, the HKCAAVQ received 12 delegations from
other quality assurance agencies and education authorities around
the world, such as the Knowledge and Human Development
Authority (KHDA] of the Dubai Government, the Macau Tertiary
Education Services Office (GAES), the Higher Education Evaluation
and Accreditation Council of Taiwan (HEEACT) and the European
Qualifications Framework (EQF) Advisory Group. Last year, we also
visited the offices of the National Recognition Information Centre
for the United Kingdom (UK NARIC] and the National Office of
Overseas Skills Recognition of Australian Education International
(AEI-NOQSR) to share practices and explore areas of mutual
interest.
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To foster more in-depth exchange of knowledge and perspectives
with relevant international organisations, we took part in the
HEEACT's academic reviews of all English taught programmes in
Taiwan universities in June 2011. We also received an assessor
from the Assessment and Certification Division of the Council
for Private Education (CPE), Singapore, for a short attachment in
February 2012. The exchange enabled both sides to gain a better
understanding of the quality assurance frameworks, accreditation
/ assessment models and execution in the two regions.

During the reporting year, the HKCAAVQ participated
in 14 international conferences, and delivered papers and
presentations in six of them, including the International Network
for Quality Assurance Agencies in Higher Education (INQAAHE])
Conference in April 2011, HEEACT International Conference in
June 2011, the Asia Pacific Quality Network (APQN) Conference
in February 2012 and the British Council Global Policy Dialogue
in March 2012. Through these activities the HKCAAVQ exchanged
knowledge and best practices with practitioners from around the
world and laid the groundwork for future collaboration.
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Looking Forward

Effective communication brings transparency and accountability.
To facilitate better understanding and communication, we will
continue to explore more effective and innovative ways to engage
our many stakeholders. We will also work in close collaboration
with institutions and industry partners to ensure that the quality
and standard of our services meets their needs and expectations.

RERE

RIFBEBEDRSEAEZMBEL
RUITEBGEBIAZRERIAIFE
BEEBRNE o RIFITERELRRM
ERBHRFEREE  BRIABRN
ARIFEESTM B B RNTEMYE -



FINANCIAL

REPORT
B R



Financial Report
B s®E

Independent auditor’s report to

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualifications

[Established under the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of
Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance)

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong Council
for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications (the
“Council”) set out on pages 58 to 101, which comprise the balance
sheet as at 31 March 2012, statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in reserves and cash flow statement for the
year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

The Council's responsibility for the financial
statements

The Council is responsible for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and for such internal
control as the Council determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 15 of the Hong Kong
Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
Ordinance (Cap.1150), and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Council as at 31 March 2012 and of its
surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

30 October 2012
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Statement Of Comprehensive Income

EHERFER

for the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) @& =2 ——F = B =+— B ILFE CABEHIR)

NOTE 2012 2011

By aE HK$ HK$
Income XA
Accreditation fees FTE & 40,142,924 32,528,652
Advisory and consultancy fees &8/ MEAR & 21,467,083 13,940,060
Qualifications assessment fees B s1{h & 6,642,736 5,616,079
Qualifications Registry fees &F L& 3,850,603 2,410,200
Government grants BT B 11 559,854 5,644,025
Investment income & WA 3 1,239,761 1,003,743
Other income H AW A 4 19,101 59,685

73,922,062 61,202,444

Expenditures %

Staff costs & TR 5(a) 40,608,199 30,837,714
Administrative expenses 1T & F 10,645,397 9,608,774
Direct accreditation/consultancy costs BT / AR A A 7,041,106 9,592,462
Council meeting and committee expenses AAEHEMEZEE S 1,072,657 833,969
Impairment loss on available-for-sale equity securities 743 587 B
Al E AR E SR EEE '
.....60.130941 50,872,919

Surplus for the year AREEZHE 5 13791121 10,329,525
Other comprehensive income Hth 2@ Uk
Available-for-sale securities: A]{f &R ANE % -

- Changes in fair value recognised during the year (1.452.066) 2 45.948

AREREERAAEBENE

- Reclassification adjustment for impairment losses
transferred to surplus or deficit 763,582 -
EEABRIFFHBERREN D BRAE

Other comprehensive income for the year A& & H it 2 E (688,484) 2,425,948

Total comprehensive income for the year A FEE 2 E 13,102,637 12,755,473

The notes on pages 64 to 99 form part of these financial statements.
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Balance sheet

BEEREX

as at 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) =Z—=F= A=+—8 (J\B¥5IR)

NOTE 2012 2011
By aE HK$ HK$
Non-current assets EREEE
Fixed assets EE & E 7 6,768,812 1,244,555
Investments & & 8 15,434,343 19,790,527
e 22203050 21,035,082
Current assets B &EE
Investments & & 8 3,903,246 2,000,000
Accounts receivable and deposits FEUWBRR R iZE 9 16,389,295 8,628,221
Bank deposits and cash $R1T1F K kIR & 10 54,420,557 42,023,041
L TAI13098 52651262
Current liabilities RE) & &
Deferred government grants {EZEBUT B 11 13,241,433 3,748,690
Receipts in advance TBU K 12 7,283,771 9,777,596
Other payables and accruals A ESERR N EFTEMA 4,611,272 1,161,667
Provision for staff gratuities 8 T4Jjml & 2EH# 13 2,474,605 3,094,645
Provision for office reinstatement cost ##/2 &= B & AN 24 2,077,558 -
29,688,639 17,782,598
Net current assets B & EFE 45,024,459 34,868,664
Total assets less current liabilities EEMERZHE®E 67227614 ________ 55903746
Non-current liabilities k@82
Provision for staff gratuities 8 T47mBN© 2/ 13 1,340,841 1,042,052
Provision for office reinstatement cost #t/A\ EE &K RN AER *2077558
1081 3119610
NET ASSETS EEF{E 65,886,773 52,784,136
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Balance sheet

EERAER
as at 31 March 2012 (continued) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ZZ——F = =+—8 (#&) CABEZIR)
NOTE 2012 2011
i HK$ HK$
RESERVES f#& 14
Accumulated surpluses 2FT &k 63,786,176 49,995,055
Investment revaluation reserve & & {4 e 2,100,597 2,789,081
65,886,773 52,784,136

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 30 October 2012
ABRZE—_F+ =1+ RiUERREER TR ER

Chairman *J&

Executive Director #2#%%=

The notes on pages 64 to 99 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of changes in reserves
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for the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) @2 = ——F = A =+—H L FE CABEIIR)

Investment
Accumulated revaluation
surpluses reserve Total
RitBtr REEREE &t
HK$ HK$ HK$
Balance at 1 April 2010 #2010 4 A 1 HM&&EER 39,665,530 363,133 40,028,663
Changes in equity for 2010/2011:
2010 F / 2011 FAEEE
Surplus for the year N [E B4 10,329,525 = 10,329,525
Other comprehensive income for the year
RNEEE A 2 E W - 2,425,948 2,425,948
Total comprehensive income ZE Wz &5t 10329525 2425948 12,755,473
Balance at 31 March 2011 and 1 April 2011
MR201ME3A3MBM2011F4 B 1 BHNERR 49,995,055 2,789,081 52,784,136
Changes in equity for 2011/2012: o
20115 / 2012 B2 -
Surplus for the year &A% & &k 13,791,121 = 13,791,121
Other comprehensive income for the year
NG E A 2 E S - (688,484 (688,484)
Total comprehensive income ZHE W A5 AN (688,484) 13,102,637
Balance at 31 March 2012 742012 % 3 A 31 H4 &R 63,786,176 2,100,597 65,886,773

The notes on pages 64 to 99 form part of these financial statements.

PN EE 64 25 99 BRI T RAMIEHREN —& 5 -
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Cash flow statement
BERER

for the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ##Z2 =2 ——F = A=+—H I FE (ABEHIR)

NOTE 2012 2011
Bt & HK$ HK$
Surplus for the year N EEZ & 13,791,121 10,329,525
Adjustments for: FH#EIER :
Depreciation 78 912,236 1,037,655
Dividend income A& S4A (348,632) (297,335)
Interest income F 8UZA (891,128) (706,408)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets & & & F & E &7 (1,000)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale equity securities
A ERAREFREER 763,582 -
Operating surplus before changes in working capital
EEETRHAKERR 14,227,179 10,362,437
Increase in accounts receivable and deposits
FEMR R S A2 & 3 N (7,761,074) (5,963,975)
Increase/(decrease) in deferred government grants
BT w g / (R 9,492,743 (1,030,271)
(Decrease)/increase in receipts in advance TBU TR (54> ) / 3N (2,493,825) 3,971,167
Increase/(decrease] in other payables and accruals
HADRE S BRBK  ERT & AR 00 / (B4 3,449,605 (580,683)
(Decreasel/increase in provision for staff gratuities
B TAmENE 2 ORi2) /180 (321,251) 616,806
Cash generated from operating activities
RETHREENRESRETFE 16,593,377 7,375,481
Investing activities IR &5
Payment for purchase of fixed assets B AEE & ER K (6,436,493) (154,185)
Proceeds from maturity of held-to-maturity debt securities
AR HEBES D BMEIE 2,000,000 4,000,000
Payment for purchase of available-for-sale securities
R BESESFD MG TR (999,751) -
Investment in bank deposits with maturity of more than three
months at acquisition
AR =EA A L2 EIRITIFRIRE (2,873,473) -
Interest received & YW H| & 891,751 702,057
Dividends received & 4% 2 348,632 297,335

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities

REZD (A EENREREFH (7,069,334 4,845,207




Cash flow statement
BERER

for the year ended 31 March 2012 (continued) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HEZ-——F=ZA=+—RIFE (&) ABEIIR)

Financial Report Bf 7 & &

NOTE 2012 2011
(iR HK$ HK$
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
ReRASEEWILNFEE 9,524,043 12,220,688
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
FURERBREEEY 42,023,041 29,802,353
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
FREERBAEEEY 10 51,547,084 42,023,047

The notes on pages 64 to 99 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

P AR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAZE¥ 517 )

1

Status of the Council

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications (the “Council’) is a body corporate
established under the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation
of Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance. Under
the Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
Ordinance (Cap. 592) (the "Ordinance”] the Council assumes
its statutory role as the Accreditation Authority and QR
Authority under the Qualifications Framework ("QF"). As
the Accreditation Authority, the Council is responsible
for developing and implementing the standards and
mechanisms for accreditation of academic and vocational
qualifications to underpin the QF and for organising the
accreditation exercises for the purposes as specified in
the Ordinance. The Council also provides advice to the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(the "HKSAR Government”) on the registration of non-local
academic and professional courses, the assessment on non-
local qualifications and also on educational standards and
qualifications generally. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, all
other Members and Executive Director of the Council are
appointed by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR Government.
Also, the determination of accreditation fees, the financial
budget and other operating policies of the Council are
approved by the HKSAR Government. Therefore the Council
considered itself to be a government-related entity.

Since the Council is not profit-oriented and is not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirements, its primary
financial and capital management objectives are to maintain
a balance between annual income and expenditure, so that it
has the ability to operate as a going concern and perform its
statutory roles and functions.
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Notes to the financial statements

g Ik
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% %1 7R)

1

Status of the Council (continued)

The Council is primarily financed through the charging of
fees for academic and vocational accreditation services
rendered which include validations, revalidations,
institutional reviews, qualifications assessments and
advisory/consultancy services. Any operating surplus shall
be carried forward to the following financial year to meet
future expenditure required for the operations of the Council.

1
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Notes to the financial statements

P AR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZE#517R)

(a)

Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ["HKFRSs"), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Council is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs and one new Interpretation that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Council. Of these,
the following developments are relevant to the Council's
financial statements:

- HKAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party disclosures

- Improvements to HKFRSs (2010)

(a)
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Notes to the financial statements

g E e
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& #%17R)

2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)

(a) Statement of compliance (continued)

The impacts of these developments are discussed below:

- HKAS 24 [revised 2009) revises the definition of a related

party. As a result, the Council has re-assessed the
identification of related parties and concluded that the
revised definition does not have any material impact on
the Council's related party disclosures in the current and
previous period. HKAS 24 (revised 2009) also introduces
modified disclosure requirements for government-
related entities. The relevant information is disclosed in
note 17.

Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) omnibus standard
introduce a number of amendments to the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures. The disclosures about the Council's
financial instruments in note 15 have been conformed
to the amended disclosure requirements. These
amendments do not have any material impact on the
classification, recognition and measurements of the
amounts recognised in the financial statements in the
current and previous periods.

The Council has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (note 19).
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Notes to the financial statements

PR AR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA7E#517R)

(b)

Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the investments in equity securities are stated at fair value
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgement made by the Council in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements is discussed in note 18.
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(c)

Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Investments in debt and equity securities

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Council commits to purchase/sell the investments or
they expire. Investments in debt and equity securities are
initially stated at fair value, which is their transaction price
unless fair value can be more reliably estimated using other
valuation techniques. Cost includes attributable transaction
costs. These investments are subsequently accounted for as

follows, depending on their classification:

(i} Held-to-maturity debt securities

Dated debt securities that the Council has the positive
ability and intention to hold to maturity are classified as
held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities
are stated in the balance sheet at amortised cost less
impairment losses.

Impairment losses for held-to-maturity securities
are recognised when there is objective evidence of
impairment and are measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of the asset].
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Council about
events that have an impact on the asset’s estimated
future cash flows such as:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor; or

(c)
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(c)

Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through surplus or deficit. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

(i) Available-for-sale securities

Other investments in securities, being those held for
non-trading purposes, are classified as available-
for-sale securities. At the balance sheet date the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the investment
revaluation reserve, except foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from changes in the amortised cost
of monetary items such as debt securities which are
recognised directly in surplus or deficit.

Dividend income from these investments is recognised
in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(U){vii)
and, where these investments are interest-bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in surplus or deficit in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(lJ[vil. When these investments
are derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from equity to surplus or deficit.

(c)
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2 EEEFHEXGE)

2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)

(c) EBRRAESFRE (F)

(c) Investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

When there is objective evidence that available-for-sale
securities are impaired, the cumulative loss that has
been recognised in the investment revaluation reserve
is reclassified to surplus or deficit. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in surplus or deficit
is the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in surplus or deficit. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Council concerning the underlying
financial stability of the investee as well as a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost.

Impairment losses recognised in surplus or deficit in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities are not
reversed through surplus or deficit. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair
value can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals
of impairment losses in such circumstances are
recognised in surplus or deficit.

EEFRENIRBRAIHY
ERXFRER CDEERER
BERMEANEINRSE
T@mﬁ%ﬁ“*ﬁi%%%ﬁ%%?ﬁ
o BRI F IR
E%EJHE%TE%LXE%EBZK (FNBR
EMASEEMBEHER) &
=0 %’Aﬁ{ﬁTEZFEJEﬁ#%E
W Rk £ AR 3% B EE B AR
7R F R R AR EE
BRAE - BENEETR
BRARIEINAEREH
B Pl E TR
ERAAREENRAEER
RIFSHEHIERAA

AHHERAEFCEAK
AR F R ERNRERRT
CEBABIFAFER - E
LEEAABEEIRNEM
EReEREHEbEE RS
RHER °

MRAFEHEEBELF A
EEARNIEETE L2
BEERERRELENENSA
B RIREBOREEE &
SR T2 | 1R 1B B 1R 1
HERSRATRFHER -

7



Financial Report B 7§ ¥ &

Notes to the financial statements

P AR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZE#517R)

(d)

Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

- Leasehold improvements Over the remaining

term of the lease

- Furniture and equipment 5years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

The carrying amounts of fixed assets are reviewed for
indications of impairment at the balance sheet date. An
impairment loss is recognised in surplus or deficit if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of an asset, or of the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, is the greater of its fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and the risks
specific to the assets. An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change in estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of fixed assets are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the item and are recognised in surplus or deficit on the
date of retirement or disposal.

(d)

TESTBE (&)
BlE&EE
Bl 4 2 L A T B

MR EEREEERBRBRE

BEEERBNTERNERE
FE LA N TR T R HABR A s ELAX
A (BHIRRERTRE (1)) 75

- HEENE HE H e
- EEAMERE 54

rEeegFEHEEN T HHR
T=ME (F) -

rRetaERENHETEER
EEEARETR - & EEXA
BRZEHNETHNREEASESR
Hul ol &5y - REBRES
ERBHAFHER - BENA
WEHBELEEAAEE (BHMRH
EXA) BERBEMETHNES
7o ERHEEAEER - B AR
KRERESHRERRERT
SHEERERENEERERR
MFHERBRATITRE - REH
BE - NRAAREE AU B 2R
MEETBBELBE LTINS A
ARREBERESEMD

HERREEEEERBMEL
IR R FIE SRR FREERE
EEERECR AN ERE
E URBESFERERSKE
TRFRHER ©



Notes to the financial statements

g E e
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& #%17R)

(e)

Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of

transactions, is or contains a lease if the Council determines

that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific

asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for

a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination

is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the

arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement

takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Council

Assets that are held by the Council under leases which
transfer to the Council substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to

the Council are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Council has the use of assets under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged
to surplus or deficit in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in surplus or
deficit as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payment made.

(e)
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(f)

Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts, except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are
recognised when there is objective evidence of impairment
and are measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the asset’s original effective interest
rate where the effect of discounting is material. Objective
evidence of impairment included observable data that comes
to the attention of the Council about events that have an
impact on the asset’s estimated future cash flows such as
significant financial difficulty of the debtor.

Impairment losses for trade and other receivables whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote are recorded
using an allowance account. When the Council is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade and other receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account relating to
that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in surplus or
deficit.
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(g)

(h]

(i)

Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(9)

(h)
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(j)

(k)

Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Income tax

The Council is exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax by
virtue of section 87 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Council has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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(u

Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Income recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable.

Provided it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Council and the income

and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, income is

recognised in surplus or deficit as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

fees for rendering of accreditation services to
institutions are recognised in the period to the extent the
accreditation work is completed;

advisory fees and consultancy fees are recognised in the
period in which such services are rendered;

fees for rendering of qualifications assessment services
are recognised in the period in which such assessment
work is completed;

qualifications registry fees are recognised in the period
in which such services are rendered;

government grants are recognised in the balance sheet
initially as deferred income when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Council
will comply with conditions attached to them. Grants
that compensate the Council for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in surplus or deficit on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred;

interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method; and

(vii) dividend income from listed investments is recognised

when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

()
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2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)

(m) Related parties

(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Council if that person:

(i} has control or joint control over the Council;
(i} has significant influence over the Council; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Council.

(2) An entity is related to the Council if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i} The entity and the Council are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

liii} Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv] One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)

(m) Related parties (continued)

(v)] The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Council or an
entity related to the Council.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (1).

(vi) A person identified in (1){i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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3 Investment income 3 REWA
2012 2011
HK$ HK$
Interest income FBULA 891,128 706,408

Dividend income B2 BUgA 348632 297335

1,239,760 1,003,743

4 Other income 4 HaA
2012 2011
HK$ HK$
Review of non-QF Accreditation JEE T4 RS HERE 11,459 18,000
Consultancy fee from external activities MN8)/E B #UEE R & - 20,843
Gain on disposal of fixed assets Bz & & & = 2 F - 1,000
Miscellaneous income Eflig A 7,642 19,842
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PR R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #5117 )

5 Surplus for the year

Surplus for the year is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

ARERBHEIR /(A

5

Financial Report Bt 7§ % &

REERR

2012 2011
HK$ HK$

(a) Staff costs & T AN

Salaries, wages and other benefits ¥& « T& MHEF)

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds
SRR E S R

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the above staff costs did
not include salaries, wages and other benefits of $4,575,483
and contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds of $124,429
relating to the Qualifications Framework project, which were
included in direct accreditation/consultancy costs in the
statement of comprehensive income.

39,774,090 30,261,409

834,109 576,305

40,608,199 30,837,714

REZE_E——F=ZA=+—
HLEFE UEBTITRALTA
BEHFL TEMEMER L
4,575,483 TLLA R Gg fil M AR & it
FR124,4297C - s L# 2 & E
BTSN S Wit AR
E xR BT/ BREKAR]
—IF o

2012 2011
HK$ HK$
(b) Other items EAhIEH
Auditor’ s remuneration #ZZXEM < 122,000 99,000
Depreciation #7& 912,236 1,037,655
Operating lease charges in respect of properties
MELELHEER 5,436,508 5,115,352
Interest income from held-to-maturity debt securities
FAERIHEBEFHNBEA (469,824) (600,278)
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6 Taxation 6 BiE
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required to RIRCTRIBSARGI)E 87 15 - NB¥E
be made in these financial statements as the Council is My BitBRENB®RE
exempted from taxation pursuant to section 87 of the Inland FHERBNEH -

Revenue Ordinance.

7 Fixed assets 7 BEEE
Furniture
Leasehold and
improvements equipment Total
HEXE HEEMNRE nE
HK$ HK$ HK$
Cost: FA :
At 1 April 2011 72011454 A1 H 4,907,593 3,481,645 8,389,238
Additions K& 4,600,310 1,836,183 6,436,493
At31March 2012020123318 9,007,903 5317828 14825731
Accumulated depreciation: 25H7E :
At 1 April 2011 7201154 A1 H 4,105,039 3,039,644 7,144,683
Charge for the year A EEHT & 648,656 263,580 912,236
At 31 March 2012 ® 20123 A31 H 4,753,695 3,303,224 8,056,919

Net book value: BRE 1 :
At 31 March 2012 201243 A31 H 4,754,208 2,014,604 6,768,812
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7 Fixed assets (continued) 7 BEEE (&)
Furniture
Leasehold and

improvements equipment Total

HENE HEEMRE mE

HK$ HK$ HK$

Cost: A7 :

At 1 April 2010 ¥ 20104 A1 H 4,146,403 3,395,528 7,941,931

Additions A& 761,190 93,995 855,185

Disposal TRfE& - (7,878) (7.878)

At 31 March 2011 2201143 A 31 H 4,907,593 3,481,645 8,389,238
Accumulated depreciation: ®st%&:

At 1 April 2010 201054 A1 H 3,454,412 2,660,494 6,114,906

Charge for the year AEENE 650,627 387,028 1,037,655

Written back on disposals #/EE#E @] - (7,878) (7,878)

At 31 March 2011 A 201143 31 H 4,105,039 3.039 644 7144 683
Netbook value: EE®®& :

At 31 March 2011 201143 A 31 H 802,554 442,001 1,244,555

Included within the cost of leasehold improvements is HENEXABERRAEEENE

estimated cost of $1,876,485 (2011: $1,876,485) relating to RAHY {51k 4 1,876,485 7T (2011

office reinstatement. & :1,876,4857L) °
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8 Investments 8 KE

2012 2011
HK$ HK$

Unlisted held-to-maturity debt securities, at amortised cost

FEMIFEERIHESES (FREHEKA) 7,885,519 9,886,142
Available-for-sale equity securities listed in Hong Kong, at

market value

EEE LHH A HESRAES (RHE) 11,452,070 11,904,385

19,337,589 21,790,527

Less: Unlisted held-to-maturity debt securities, at
amortised cost - classified as current asset
B LR EREERE S (REHEKA)
-NRRRBEE (3,903,246) (2,000,000

15,434,343 19,790,527

Fair value of held-to-maturity debt securities

BERIHEBIE SN AREE 8,081,275 10,554,911
Fair value of individually impaired available-for-sale equity

securities

ERRER At HERAREFEFH R BE 2,164,805 -
As at 31 March 2012, the Council's available-for-sale equity R-E——F=A=+—H8" K
securities were individually determined to be impaired on the RHAIHEERAZEFEARERD
basis of significant or prolonged decline in their fair value REERBIXRATREENK
below cost. Impairment losses on these investments were RMEERIEE ARIE - &L
recognised in surplus or deficit in accordance with the policy B H R E B R AR IR I 52 2(c) (i) BT
set out in note 2(c](ii). I WG BERER BRI IR FH

TR o
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9 Accounts receivable and deposits 9 EWRIFKEZEE
2012 2011
HK$ HK$
Accounts receivable FEURBRFR 13,251,315 6,709,707
Deposits and other receivables ¥z K& H fh fE U R 2,911,765 1,718,741
Interest receivable FEUF S 226,215 199,773
16,389,295 8,628,221

All of the accounts receivable and deposits, apart from rental
and utility deposits of $1,670,371 (2011: $1,670,371), are
expected to be recovered within one year.

Accounts receivables are due on presentation of billings.
Further details on the Council's credit policy is set out in
note 15(al.

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:

B 1,670,3717C (2011 % :
1,670,37170) M E RKEEZ
N FTERKESRRIZSHR
AR FREHWE -

FEU AR SRAE X BRF R BN Z A+ © AR
BEEEBRRIIFENHE 15() -

FEUSR KA BREC DATAA T

2012 2011

HK$ HK$

Current A Hp 4,613,797 4,888,766
Less than 1 month past due @8 1@ A% 134,300 514,600

More than 1 month past due #H3 1@ A3 M) & 8,503,218 1,306,341

8,637,518 1,820,941

13,251,315 6,709,707

ALl of the Council's accounts receivable are not impaired
as at 31 March 2012 and 2011. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there was no
recent history of default and there has not been a significant
change in credit quality of the customers. The Council does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

R-F——FR-_F——%F=A
=t+—8 KB REMKERRIL &
TEHRE R - RIBBELSR
KBRS ER % F R IR LR
BfE RESEFPIMY &R
REELHEEEEE—BHYEE

HE) - MaxFHRBINRE R
BEE - KB EEFEEEZ
FERRARV AR -
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10 Cash and cash equivalents 10 RERREEEY
2012 2011
HK$ HK$
Deposits with banks 84777 3K 44,163,201 33,344,524
Cash at bank and in hand {7 FBEHRE 10,257,356 8,678,517
Bank deposits and cash in the balance sheet
BEABRATHERITERLIAS 54,420,557 42,023,047

Less: Bank deposits with maturity of more than three
months at acquisition

B EEAR=EA N ERERITER (2,873,473) -
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement
HEenEXRMTHHE REZFEY 51,547,084 42,023,041
11 Deferred government grants 11 EE BT B
2012 2011
HK$ HK$
Balance as at 1 April X4 A 1 BR& & 3,748,690 4,778,961
Grants received and receivable 45 K & Ut B 10,000,000 4,599,600
Interest thereon EFTFIE 52,597 14,154
Recognised as income during the year FREMRAHKA (559.854) | (5,644,025)
Balance as at 31 March 743 A 31 HH &% 13,241,433 3,748,690
The grants are for meeting development costs of the W AR NEREEFS N
Qualifications Framework project and relocation costs of the HBERKAE  URKBHHER

new office of the Council. RPRBAA o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZE#517R)

12 Receipts in advance

13

Receipts in advance represent amounts received for
programme accreditation, advice on the registration of non-
local courses and qualifications assessment, less amounts
recognised as income during the year.

Financial Report Bt 7§ % &

12 FAWFK

BRRBFEARREFE - UK
FEAR I FRAZ TE M AN & B RE A AR (1
EREWRHESFER D ERRA -

Provision for staff gratuities 13 BTN MM ER
2012 2011
HK$ HK$
At 1 Aprit A4 A1H 4,136,697 3,519,891
Provision made 2% 3,656,212 2,902,285
Provision utilised B A% (3,977,463) (2,285,479)
At 31 March %3 A 318 3815446 4,136,697
Less: Amount included in “current liabilities”
B [RBEE]ETAeEENESEH (2,474,605) (3,094,645)
Amount included in “non-current liabilities”
[FERBEE] B THERENESE 1,340,841 1,042,052
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14 Reserves

(a)

(b]

Components of the Council’s reserves

The opening and closing balances of each component of
the Council's reserves and a reconciliation between these
amounts are set out in the statement of changes in reserves.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
securities held at the balance sheet date and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies in note 2(c](iil.

14 ##E

(a)

(b)

N5 fit e Y 2B

HESBDEITARDE BRI
BOEDY - ERENAERD -

RESEMRHE

A BHFEERIENRE2C)>) /A
SRR EEABRAATHE
ERAEBEEN R A -



Notes to the financial statements

B RS R M
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15 Financial risk management and fair

(a)

values

Exposure to credit and liquidity risks arises in the normal
course of the Council's operations. The Council is
also exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity

investments in other entities.

The Council's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Council to
manage these risks are described below

Credit risk

The Council's credit risk is primarily attributable to bank
deposits, accounts receivables and investments in debt
securities. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

In respect of accounts receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These take into account the
customer’s past payment history, financial position and
other factors. These receivables are due on presentation of
billings. Normally, apart from certain customers with good
credit ratings, advances are requested from customers to
cover the service fee before rendering of services by the

Council.

The Council's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer. At the
balance sheet date, the Council had a certain concentration
of credit risk as 72% and 91% (2011: 84% and 100%]) of
the total accounts receivables were due from the largest
customer and the four largest customers.

Financial Report Bt 7§ % &

15 emEREENQ

(a)

REE

ARERBEBETAEARE
EXRBEZER - UL KB
A RRE E b2 B H) J N 78 55
i e 1 78 A AR R

AEHNERERERD HILE
RREERErRRXBLENRN A
EERBRFHIIT o

FERERE

$%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ’]f%ﬂ EEK;KE
RITH 3 YR A& 7

%’%'%@E%Uaﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂl Xﬁ
LREREREERBNERR

a0 o
ZON

ERERET NEEMEEK
HBE-—EHREENTF  #E
Eﬁﬁfﬁ% EERKAERE

RZABIS A - —fRME - BRIER
EERERENTPI KR
TR AR5 AT 19 B R & P TR BR 1%
Ef - AREPBEEARRE
Han e

AREENEERREEZE
%%JEWIM%&PJ% 2N
HH AREYH —TEEPREEDN
EERER - B72% & 91% (2011
F 1 84% [ 100%) 4B HEWARER
EDRIREZFAROARES o

s
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15 Financial risk management and fair

(a)

(b)

values (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Bank deposits are normally placed with financial institutions
which have good credit ratings. Investments in debt
securities are with counterparties of sound credit ratings.
Given their high credit ratings, management does not expect

any investment counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.
The Council does not provide any other guarantees which
would expose it to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Council's
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are
set out in note 9.

Liquidity risk

The Council's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and readily realisable marketable securities and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long term.

The earliest settlement dates of the Council's financial
liabilities at the balance sheet date are all within one year
or on demand and the contractual amounts of the financial
liabilities are all equal to their carrying amounts.

15 crEREENA

(a)

(b)

REEE)
=EREE (&)

RITEFBEFRREBRIE
BRI EHEE -  ARE2HEW
BEREFHRENEBRIFEE
APAREEE c ERERIFHEE
A BB ARRE LR
ETEITRENEE -

KBFAZNEREERRBE
REERBERASHEREEN
FRETH - ARLERTATE
SRR EMBIER o

ABEHKAREERDEER
REVEICERDIBRHIED

REBETRERE

AKBZBRIERERE R NE
HIRBESHRZENR AR
FRERHRSHE  ATHERER
MR EEESFRE MR T ET
WEBERHRE MERE
RmeHRBELEMERRZ

K o

REEBERA  ARNEHEA
BENRFEEAGE-FARIR
EREERE SRABNEOEHE
IEFEKEEE -
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15 Financial risk management and fair

(c)

values (continued)

Equity price risk

The Council is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as available-for-sale equity
securities (see note 8).

The Council's equity investments are blue-chip companies
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. These equity
investments have been chosen based on their longer
term growth potential and are monitored regularly for
performance against expectations.

At 31 March 2012, it is estimated that an increase/[decrease)
of 10% (2011: 10%) in the market price of the Council's
available-for-sale equity securities, with all other variables
held constant, would not affect the Council's surplus or
deficit unless there are impairments. The Council’s total
reserves would have increased/decreased by $1,145,207
(2011: $1,190,439).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Council's surplus for the year (and
accumulated surpluses) and investment revaluation reserve
that would arise assuming that changes in the market
value had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Council which expose the Council to equity price
risk at balance sheet date. It is also assumed that none of
the Council's available-for-sale equity securities would be
considered impaired as a result of a decrease in the prices
of respective equity securities and that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2011.

Financial Report Bt 7§ % &

15 crEREENA

(c)

REE (&)
&S ER R

ARBERARLERAES (2
BIRiEr8) AIEBREFER

KEHNBRAFELFRETDRRES
BMEXFA LML AESER D
NAE A ED - AREKES
LREFSEERENEHNER
BARERE - WEHHERARHE -

RZZE—=F=ZA=+—0" &
BREMMAERRERFTE  RIE
HIRRE - ABRAEFAHEER
RFEHFOMELF / (TK) 10%
(2011 :10%) TE8 2 X B H
BRART ARNRHEETES
EF 7 T 1,145,207 7T (2011 ¢
1,190,4397T) °

REBRAEFOTENEE AL
BHPOBHEVCRERNENT
EARZERARABANARE
AEREREBRRBRNERT
B ERGRESMTERANRBA
FEER (RRFAR) MREE
RFEEHRIRZE - 1o KB
MERREFRESAH L ERARE
FEOTHE T B AR BUE &5 18 M
FREEMA BRI - —
T——FWo R ARRERET
=
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15 Financial risk management and fair 15 crEREENA

- — —d
values (continued) REE (&)
(d) Fair values (d) AREE

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value () A2AREBEIIEMNSHTA
HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures, requires (BEEMBHRELEAET
disclosures relating to fair value measurements of ) — [2mIE : #E]
financial instruments across three levels of a “fair value EReMITARARBENG
hierarchy”. The fair value of each financial instrument ERBRIDABEER] FH
is categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level of “EERKE - EkeRmT
input that is significant to that fair value measurement. ENRAnBEIESTER
The levels are defined as follows: BHARBEFEAEEARY

£ 1 8 A B 10 1B AR
FEH) o EEERHERMT -

- Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using - BB (B
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for AR BEAR—EIN®
identical financial instruments BT ARERMIGHRE

(RIETE) #EITRTE »

- Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in - BIER: AREENE
active markets for similar financial instruments, or BT ArERT
using valuation techniques in which all significant ISERE - SHRBEF AR
inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable BERERNTISBIRIER
market data BEHANGEREET

itE o

- Level 3 (lowest level]: fair values measured using - BZEK(REER)
valuation techniques in which any significant input is AR BEFEMRERANM
not based on observable market data BRE HEEZH AW

BERE AT B R BT 5 SR ER

o

N
Ao
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15 Financial risk management and fair 15 erEREENA

values (continued)

(d) Fair values (continued) (d)

At 31 March 2012, the only financial instruments of the
Council carried at fair value were available-for-sale
equity securities of $11,452,070 (2011: $11,904,385)
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (see note
8). These instruments fall into Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy described above.

During the year, there were no transfers among
instruments in Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3.

(i) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than
fair value

The carrying amounts of the Council's financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 March 2012 and 2011 except
as follows:

REE (&)

AREEE)
R_E——F=ZA=+—H"

KBAAREBEEINESSHT
BEARBABERSGMETH
AHEERAFLFEME AR
B E 5&11452,0707C (2011 :
11,904,385 7L) (2 EIMizE8) ° &
EEBMTAIMEIERRAE
EELTNE—EL -

RAFE TESBTAEEAR
BEEANSE — F_HE=E
Az EEHERETR -

(i) EAAREBEIENSHT
AW AnEE

BT E SN - AR IR K A 3 5

W$A$%é@1ﬂ%$@ﬁ
BmEEAR-_FE-—_FM_F

——%=A :—?——El WanEE
D BIAK e

2012 2012 2011 2011
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
amount amount
IRESH DAREE RESH DNREE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Held-to-maturity debt securities
RHEEIBESRES 7,885,519 8,081,275 9,886,142 10,554,911
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15 Financial risk management and fair 15 crEREENA

- — —d
values (continued) REE (&)
(e) Estimation of fair values (e) ARABEEMMET
The fair value of available-for-sale equity securities held RBFAFA A HEERARESRN
by the Council is based on quoted market prices at the ARBEEUNEZBO®RYIT
balance sheet date. The quoted market price used for BRE - ARMAFARHLER
available-for-sale equity securities held by the Council is REZFOWRSTERRFNESE -
the current bid price.
16 Commitments 16 A¥E
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEXREE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2012 in RZE-—ZF=A=+—RAF¥K
respect of leasehold improvements not provided for in the HEWEm X RETBHRER AR
financial statements were as follows: BEBNEREAENT
2012 2011
HK$ HK$

Authorised but not contracted for & FH#E(E R 5T 47 23,503,902 -
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16 Commitments (continued)
(b) Operating lease commitments
At 31 March 2012, the total future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
properties are payable as follows:

Financial Report Bt 7§ % &

16 AIE (&)
(b) REHEEAE

R-E——F=A=+—H" 1R
B BRAOMELCERERR
BEMNKEREENRBEAHN
I

2012 2011

HK$ HK$

Within 1 year 1R 2,318,370 5,453,848
After 1 year but within 5 years 1 F4B5F R - 2,318,370
2,318,370 7,772,218

The Council leases its office premises under operating
leases. The lease runs for an initial period of five to six
years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. The lease does not include contingent rentals.

ARRELEHEEERANLE - Z
HEMNFRBAEARF ¥HEA
EREDHARES BN
BRRHAEFEE HETE
SRBEHEE -
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17 BB RE RS

17 Related party transactions

Except as disclosed in (iv], all transactions related to the
procurement of goods and services involving organisations
in which a member of the Council, key management
personnel and the HKSAR Government may have an interest
are conducted in the normal course of business and in
accordance with the Council's financial obligations and
normal procurement procedures.

All transactions related to the provision of accreditation
services to organisations in which a member of the Council,
key management personnel and the HKSAR Government
may have an interest are conducted in the normal course of
business and in accordance with the Council's fee charging
policy and fee schedule as prescribed by the Ordinance.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Council had the
following related party transactions:

(i} Honorarium paid to Council members in the capacity of

B (V) FIBBESN - HiAEAR
EEERE  MREBASARK
R 7 36 B 17 0 1 2 B
BRP HBEREHEELE
2 B B ) B 75 40 B TR IE % 4R
R AT -

PMEEAREEENRE  BRE
BABMBFA NS B HETT
MABELEPRS YBLEES
BEY D RBAN R E BEUKER
RREPIRTANE R —BEXREUK
B -

BRAM SRR IR TEHR 5 A
BN NBREBATHEB RS

() B E AL TR 5 AUk 2
BB S

2012 2011
HK$ HK$
Non-local Council members FEZARHIER B 312,000 312,000

Local Council members are not remunerated.

ABEFGAMAK R I T
B o
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17 Related party transactions
(continued)

(i)

Key management personnel remuneration

Financial Report Bt 7§ % &

17 BB LSR5 (&)

(i)

BAREEASME

2012 2011

HK$ HK$

Salaries and other emoluments ¥& M E A B & 6,848,553 6,012,654
Retirement scheme contributions ER&HEI 25,000 24,959
6,873,553 6,037,613

(iii)

(iv)

Key management personnel comprise of the Executive

Director, Deputy Executive Director, Director of
Accreditation and Assessment, Director of Corporate
The above

Services and Financial Controller.

remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(a)).

During the year ended 31 March 2012, approximately
33% (2011: 25%) of the Council's total income are derived
from services provided to the HKSAR Government, and
approximately 21% (2011: 28%) of it are derived from
services provided to other government-related entities.
All the services are conducted in the normal course
of business and in accordance with the Council's fee
charging policy and fee schedule as prescribed by the
Ordinance.

Effective 1 September 2011, the Council has entered
into a lease with the HKSAR Government and rented a
vacant school premises in Siu Sai Wan Estate, Chai Wan,
Hong Kong at a charge of $1 per month as its new office
for an initial term of five years. The Council completed
the relocation of its office in July 2012. The HKSAR
Government also provided $10 million funding support
for conversion and renovation of the new office of the
Council (see note 11).

(iif)

(iv)

AREEAEBREERSE
Blars FELRIZA

T EB A MET 7548
B LBt ATBE I
A J(2BMEES() A -

HE-_Z——F=A=+—H
LIEFE - BEARBRBIAR -
#933% (=& — — F : 25%)
KB RBFRERT - 8921%
(TZ——14F : 28%) KBME
ftb BUAT A B B BR AR (AR A5 o
FrE RSB IE T ET5EEL
EIRRBRABHE RS &
GAIETANEBR —EXREWE
)Eﬁo

HZZT——FNA—HRR &
%ﬁﬁﬁhJTfﬁﬂ = 19
% WA 1 TmBEAE
%%é¢ﬁ/% W BE B
R&  ERFNMAE - 1A
HEFHARTF - ARKN=-F
—ZF -t AERIRE - BUTE
BT 1,0008LES - BB
KREERE /I AERIEH
HIEER (2BWFE 11) -
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18 BSRE T

18 Critical accounting judgement

Certain critical accounting judgement in applying the
Council's accounting policies is described below.

Impairment of held-to-maturity financial assets and
available-for-sale financial assets

The Council follows the guidance of HKAS 39 in determining
when an investment is other-than-temporarily impaired.
This determination requires significant judgment. In
making this judgement, the Council evaluates, among other
factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost; and the financial health of
and near-term business outlook for the investee, including
factors such as industry and sector performance, changes in
technology and operational and financing cash flow.

AT RERABETEREFL
F B K

FEZIMSRMEERTHEE
TRMEENRE

RBBECEBEERIDF 395K
MiEsl - NEE —HREFHEHE
ERERE - AMETEEAD
HE - EAELRRFHER - XB
AHENREEBEEL RN TS
AR - A DR BEERKAE
MlEEMEENRRE  RIKET
MR ERATR - B
EERRR - R ARZE
HERBEMRER
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19 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 March 2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2012 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may
be relevant to the Council.

Financial Report Bt 7§ % &

19 EMEMERREN

Mt EREE -
HEtEARRE
HR-FE-ZF=
A=z+t—-—HBLwWE
STFENTRESE

BHEAMBHRRELAY  FE

EFMABREEMZEERE -
g—iizﬁ =+ —HIEFEWH
RNER  TORBEARTBEHRKRERK
FAEMEET AR AR o 55 LEXERI &
EBETIRIEEARBEBNIE
E °

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

EUAT AR 2 KRB

SITHIEEX
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures -
. . 1 July 2011
Transfers of financial assets 201147 A 18
(CBBIBHMELERDETHRIEE] - [T HE : FHE — SREEREE]
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements -
Presentation of items of other comprehensive income 1 July 2012
CEAEGRERNDE 15:85] - [MBmREMNIIHR — Et2mk=EIEg 20127818

#9513k |

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement
(CRBEHRERERDF 135 - [ AR EENFE]
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
(CEAYFBHELNNEIR - [£mIT A

The Council is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the Council's results of operations and financial position.

1 January 2013
20131 A 1H

1 January 2015
20151418
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Financial Report B 7§ ¥ &

Analysis of expenditure

X H T

for the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) @& =2 ——F = B =+— B ILFE CABEHIR)

2012 2011
HK$ HK$
Staff costs B TR
Salaries #& 35,991,787 26,989,232
Allowances and other staff costs )28 R E A B TR 4,616,412 3,848,482

40,608,199 30,837,714

Administrative expenses 1TH & H

Auditor’ s remuneration &N & 122,000 99,000
Bank charges $R1TFESE 19,239 18,067
Cleaning /B RE 118,471 109,493
Community relations #L[&B8{& 27,722 32,926
Consultancy fees EAfS & 154,751 122,058
Depreciation #T& 912,236 1,007,655
Incidental expenses 187 tH 4,909 29,329
Insurance {REx & 194,736 109,522
Legal advisory fees JA/2:&:AE 498,567 36,544
Light and power &% 182,440 161,523
Membership fee &% 61,966 66,827
Overseas visits and conferences /@5 FI &% 163,444 139,052
Periodicals, newspapers and books #if!| + $R4EME A 35,199 38,339
Photocopying S2E00 30,950 27,359
Postage #H#& 39,974 72,994
Printing ENfill & 141,848 151,850
Publicity /&% 194,607 276,118
Recruitment and training BEEREEF| 137,550 81,433
Rent and rates A& FZ= W 6,786,363 6,435,723
Repairs and maintenance #ERREE 62,743 84,308
Securities transaction charges 5 B & & 13,110 7,448
Stationery and consumables X EAEFE 203,123 179,260
Telephone and facsimile EEMEEE A 201,561 222,131
Tools and equipment TEMHE 317,385 67437
Translation expenses B2 & 1,379 14,473
Transport and travelling 2@ & 19,124 16,855
Work compensation % TE5{EREF - 1,050

10,645,397 9,608,774



Analysis of expenditure

X 7 Hr

for the year ended 31 March 2012 (continued) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_ZT——F=A=+—HILFE (B) ABEKIIR)

Direct accreditation/consultancy costs B #3575 / BEER A<
Accreditation costs 772 &

Qualifications Register costs BFE &2 A

Qualifications Framework project costs &4 # T EIE

Council meeting and committee expenses AR EEREZEE X H

Air passages #2

Honorarium payments Bl {4 5¢

Hotel accommodation B /EFE &

Working lunches and dinners A% 8R Mg ER 2 tH
Subsistence allowance Zf &

Transport and miscellaneous expenses 3@ B MFEE

Others Hfth

Impairment loss on available-for-sale equity securities

A ERAE FRERE

Total expenditure > H# %A

Financial Report Bt 7§ % &

2012 2011
HK$ HK$
5,612,712 3,565,067
1,278,247 383,370
150,147 5,644,025

o JOALI0G 9592462
549,599 312,842
312,000 312,000
80,784 55,044
79,952 115,444
35,100 29,250
15,222 9,389

o MOTREST B39

763,582 -

60,130,941 50,872,919

101



Appendices
P %

List of Council Members FERKERE

Chairman =&

Mr Martin LIAO Cheung-kong, JP BRI%E, JP
Barrister BRIIKEMEBE
Martin Liao Barrister REERD
Vice-Chairman E|EfE

Ir Dr Alex CHAN Siu-kun FRIKIREL
Managing Director ERBR AT
Applied Technology Integration Limited BEREKE

Non-Local Members k&t & 8

Ms Ann DOOLETTE

Executive Director

Australian Qualifications Framework Council
AUSTRALIA

Dr Achim HOPBACH
Managing Director

German Accreditation Council
GERMANY

Ms Aileen PONTON

Chief Executive

Scottish Credit & Qualifications Framework
UK

Professor Mala SINGH

Professor of International Higher Education Policy
Center for Higher Education Research and Information
The Open University

UK

Professor Andrew WALDER
Professor of Sociology and Senior Fellow
Department of Sociology

Stanford University

USA

Professor ZHONG Bing-Llin SERMHIR
President HEHERATE R E
Beijing Normal University RE&

CHINA
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Local Members it &8

Ms Christina CHENG Sau-yu

Cluster General Manager (Finance Kowloon Central Cluster cum
General Manager (Finance) Queen Elizabeth Hospital

Hospital Authority

Ms Winnie CHEUNG Chi-woon
Chief Executive and Registrar
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

Mr Albert CHOW Hing-pong
Director of Qualifications
The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers

Professor Frank FU Hoo-kin, MH, JP
Chairman

Joint Quality Review Committee
Associate Vice-President

Hong Kong Baptist University

Ir Dr David HO Chi-shing
Group General Manager
Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings) Company Limited

Professor Richard HO Yan-Kki

Chair Professor of Finance
Department of Economics and Finance
City University of Hong Kong

Professor Edmond KO, BBS, JP

Senior Advisor to Provost and

Adjunct Professor of the Department of Chemical and Biomolecular
Engineering

The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology

Ms Carrie LEUNG Ka-lai
Chief Executive Officer
The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers

Mr Charles LO Chi-hong, MH

Advisor
Sino United Publishing (Holdings) Ltd

Professor Arthur MAK Fuk-tat
Adjunct Professor

Department of Electronic Engineering
Faculty of Engineering

The Chinese University of Hong Kong

Ex-officio Members ERRKE

Ms Michelle LI Mei-sheung, JP
Deputy Secretary for Education
(Representing the Permanent Secretary for Education)

Professor FAN Yiu-kwan, BBS, JP

Executive Director

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualifications

BWEML L
BREER
FBER B AR AR IR (B 75 ) 8
R A BB A TR (81 75)

REELE
RN
TR M EE

BEFRRE
BRI MBS
B EZEE

BEEHE, MH, JP

GREERNEESLE
FRREABHERRE

5B 1S - T2
BB/ )R(EB)BR AR
SEBKHE

fANTEHIR
R TAR
KERERE
T REBEHIE

& Z 8%, BBS, JP
ENCIRESON-

BRERERERERZ
EBETREREMS FTIRBFZREHR

REBLL
BRRITRE
TTHRAEEL

EEIESE, MH
A RSB ER AR
!

LREHR
B CASTRER
BT TR AR EHE

FRIEL L, JP
HERAWER
HEREEIWERKR)

SE¥E52 1%, BBS, JP
BB LR A TER
mnE

103



Appendices [ff &

Terms of Reference of Committees HHRZEZE S HREED

Qualifications and Accreditation Committee

1) To consider and make recommendations to the Council on
accreditation policies, criteria and procedures relevant to the
HKCAAVQ's statutory role as the Accreditation Authority under
the QF and those relevant to non-QF-related services.

2) To consider and make recommendations to the Council on
policies and procedures for maintaining the Qualifications
Register (QR) in fulfillment of the HKCAAVQ's statutory role as
the QR Authority.

3) To consider/review and endorse for the Council's approval the
policies, procedures and criteria for undertaking assessments
in regard to

e Non-local courses

e CEF courses

e CPD courses

e Qualifications Assessment
e Any other relevant activities

4) To consider and advise on any other matters concerning or
affecting the Council's accreditation and assessment work.

Personnel and Administration Committee

1) To keep under review the staffing structure of the Council.

2) To monitor human resources policies and practices of the
Council and to recommend changes when necessary, paying
particular attention to staff development and training, the
remuneration package and matters of staff welfare.

3) To keep under review the administrative efficiency of the
Secretariat.

4) To make such other recommendations within its remit, as it
thinks fit, to the Council.
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Finance Committee

1) To consider, and recommend for the Council's approval, the
annual budget of the Council, including any subsequent
adjustments thereof.

2] To consider the medium and long term financial plans of the
Council.

3) To keep under review the financial position of the Council, in
particular its return on investment and fee charging policy, and
make recommendations to the Council as appropriate.

4) To receive, consider and recommend for Council's approval the
audited financial statement.

5] To recommend, for the Council's approval, the appointment of

Auditors.

Fund Management Sub-committee (Sub-committee
of the Finance Committee)

1) To set the investment strategy with a view to achieving the
investment objectives approved by the Council.

2) To make major investment decisions and to monitor the results
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Glossary %

Accreditation

Accreditation is an authoritative and impartial evaluation of the
quality of learning programmes or the ability of an institution/
organisation in delivering such learning programmes by the
HKCAAVQ. As the HKCAAVQ is the Accreditation Authority under
the QF, qualifications of the programmes accredited by the
HKCAAVQ are eligible for entering into the QR.

Accreditation Authority

HKCAAVQ is specified in Part 1 of Schedule 1 of the Accreditation
of Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance (Cap
592) as the Accreditation Authority to develop and implement
the standards and mechanism for academic and vocational
qualification accreditation to underpin the QF. It is also entrusted
with the responsibility of assuring the quality of appointed
assessment agencies, qualifications recognised under the QF and
their associated learning programmes.

Accreditation Panel

An accreditation panel consists of specialists with the expertise
to conduct relevant accreditation exercises. A HKCAAVQ staff
member plays the dual role of a Panel Member and Secretary to
the Panel.

Accreditation Report

It is the report the HKCAAVQ issues to the agency/programme
provider on completion of an accreditation exercise. It will contain
the determination of that accreditation exercise; and state the
validity period, QF level and conditions and restrictions (if any). It
will also provide the observations and recommendations of the
accreditation panel, as well as the rationale for arriving at the
accreditation determination.
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Applied Learning (ApL) Courses

ApL is an integral part of the senior secondary curriculum to offer
diverse learning programmes for students with interests and
inclinations in areas other than those provided by the academic
school curriculum. ApL courses are provided by various course
providers including tertiary institutions and professional bodies.
The Education Bureau has introduced a three-stage quality
assurance process to ensure that the learning outcomes and
standards of the ApL subjects are comparable to other subjects
of the existing and the new secondary school curriculum. The
HKCAAVQ is responsible for examining the delivery aspects of the
ApL courses - the second stage of the quality assurance process.

Appointed Assessment Agency (AAA)

An Appointed Assessment Agency can be a person, school,
institution, organisation or other body appointed by the Secretary
for Education under the Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualifications Ordinance (Cap 592 to assess the skills, knowledge
or experience acquired by individuals and to grant qualifications
in recognition of such assessed skills, knowledge or experience.
Prior to appointment by the Secretary for Education, the agency
first needs to be successfully accredited by the HKCAAVQ under
the same ordinance.

Assessment

Assessment is a service delivered by the HKCAAVQ. It is an
impartial evaluation of programmes, schemes or individual
qualifications based on a set of assessment criteria developed
for a particular purpose. The assessment result forms an
independent opinion on the standard of the programme, scheme
or individual qualifications being assessed, but does not constitute
any recognition of the quality of the programme, scheme or similar

qualifications.

Collective Approach

It is a methodology for a streamlined accreditation service in
which a number of accreditation requests from the same industry
/ discipline / provider will be processed concurrently by a single
accreditation panel.

Appendices Fff &%

FERS2ERE

ERBEREERTRIZN—HD

£ 1 R SR AN EX A Y BB AE AR AR
RUMSIMNNZTTEBF A - BASERRE
HARMRIZERERE - BHEE LR
REBXER - HEREL —E=ER
WEERFRERF  UEREASERE
B MK AR E R E M IRTTH R B K
it RE - FERABERFHE
EENERRFRE  I2EFREHRS
MEZE -

R RFHEEE

RETHREARETHEANKRE - A
Mk AEE - WIS KR S ek

MBHAEERE  BHTERE - XETHE
BEBE(EMRBEERTEBD)
(BSNE)EHBERBREERM @ AlZ
MRIAL « 252 - 84 - BiBHME
B SLTEMBTER T TR - BAR
BRI BB D1 B T 8 B 2 FT 2 -

BEA

SR ERRENERE . —  BRIRE
BENMZERRESETEN - HR
2 FrESEANEBRIERLAEZ -
A RBINTERE AR - FrEIk
EABREKFEMEIAENER - BXF
BRCEZARIZ - FHEI UM BEEE X
A EAR R R HBAL

BHEREK

R EREREN—ERE A&
T/ MARB R R B R — 1T ¥R
HRIEEMENZ(EFEER -

107



Appendices [ff &

Evidence-based

It is one of the principles of accreditation. It means that
accreditation decisions will be made based on the evidence
provided by the providers to demonstrate that they meet the

accreditation standards stipulated by the HKCAAVQ.

Fitness for Purpose

It is one of the principles of accreditation. It means that
programme providers or programmes are accredited based on

their stated objectives.

Four-stage Quality Assurance Process

It is @ mechanism developed by the HKCAAVQ to conduct
accreditation according to a structured process to underpin the QF.
The stages of the process include IE, PV, PAA and PR. Through
them, the HKCAAVQ evaluates learning programmes and the
education or training capabilities of programme providers under
the QF.

Industry Training Advisory Committee (ITAC)

ITAC is an advisory body comprising representatives from
employers, employees and professional bodies of an industry to
develop, maintain and update the SCS, and formulate an RPL
mechanism for that industry. It also helps promote the QF within
the industry.

Initial Evaluation (IE)

IE is the first stage of the Four-stage Quality Assurance Process.
It is an evaluation of whether a programme provider has the
organisational competency to effectively manage and provide
adequate resources to the development, delivery, assessment and
quality assurance of its learning programmes and educational/
training services.
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Institutional Review (IR)

IR is an evaluation of the overall academic environment of an
institution in delivering its intended learning programmes. An
IR exercise examines an institution’s governance, institutional
structure, academic plans, staffing, quality assurance and
resources. If the IR is conducted for registration under the Post
Secondary Colleges Ordinance (Cap 320), it will also ascertain
whether the institution meets the academic requirements of the
ordinance.

Learning Outcome

Learning outcome refers to a student’s attained knowledge, skills
and application as a result of completing a learning programme.

Non-local Course/Learning Programme

Non-local course/learning programme refers to courses registered
(or exempted from registration) under the Non-local Higher and
Professional Education (Regulation) Ordinance (Cap 493).

Outcome-based

Refers to an approach which focuses on the empirical
measurement of learners’ performance (outcomes), rather than
emphasising the resources available to the learners (inputs).

Peer Review

It is one of the principles of accreditation. It means that academic
and professional experts with relevant expertise and experience
are involved as panel members in the accreditation process.

Periodic Review (PR)

PR is the fourth stage of the Four-stage Quality Assurance
Process. Programme providers granted a PAA status have
to undertake PR in order to maintain their PAA status. PR is
repeated at regular intervals according to the validity period of the
PAA status. PR is used to ascertain whether the internal quality
assurance processes of the provider continue to be effective and

sound.
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Programme Area Accreditation (PAA)

PAA is the third stage of the Four-stage Quality Assurance Process.
It is conferred on programme providers with sufficient quality
assurance competency and maturity at the organisational level and
a good track record in their validated programmel(s). Upon gaining
PAA, a provider may develop and operate learning programmes
within an approved scope of programme areals) at specified QF
Level(s) for an approved period of time (validity period), and have
the qualifications of its learning programmes entered into the QR
for QF recognition without going through programme validation or
revalidation by the HKCAAVQ.

Programme Validation (PV) and Revalidation

PV is the second stage of the Four-stage Quality Assurance
Process. It is an overall evaluation of the learning programme
to determine whether its planning and management, syllabuses,
delivery arrangements and assessment methods, are able to
achieve its claimed objectives and deliver its intended learning
outcomes. Programme revalidation is the re-accreditation of
programmes before the expiry date of their programme validation
period.

Qualifications Framework (QF)

The QF in Hong Kong is a seven-level cross-sectoral hierarchy
to clearly define the standards of qualifications in the academic,
vocational and continuing education sectors. It was set up by the
Government on 5 May 2008 to promote lifelong learning and to
enhance the capabilities and competitiveness of the Hong Kong
workforce to meet the needs of a knowledge-based economy.

QF Level

Refers to the seven levels of the QF. Learning programmes
undergoing accreditation will be pitched at one of the seven levels.

Qualifications Register (QR)

QR is an online register (www.hkqr.gov.hk) containing qualifications
recognised under the QF. It was set up by the Government under
the QF on 5 May 2008. It provides free information to the public
about QF-recognised qualifications, associated programmes and
programme providers.
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QR Authority

The HKCAAVQ is specified in Part 2 of Schedule 1 of the
Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance
(Cap 592] as the QR Authority to maintain the QR.

Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL)

RPL is a mechanism under the QF to give formal recognition of
the knowledge, skills and experience of people from different
industries. The operation of RPL will be based on the SCSs
formulated by the respective industries through their ITACs.

Self-accrediting Operators/Institutions/Providers

Under Schedule 2 of the Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualifications Ordinance (Cap 592), self-accrediting operators
in Hong Kong are The Chinese University of Hong Kong, City
University of Hong Kong, Hong Kong Baptist University, The Hong
Kong Institute of Education (for learning programmes in teacher
education only), The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology, Lingnan University,
The Open University of Hong Kong and The University of Hong
Kong.

Specification of Competency Standards (SCS)

The SCS represent the industry benchmarks for the skills,
knowledge and attributes required to perform tasks in that
industry at a certain QF level. SCS are developed by the ITAC of the
relevant industry.

SCS-based Programmes

SCS-based programmes are programmes designed in accordance
with the SCS.

Threshold Standard

It is one of the principles of accreditation. It refers to the minimum
quality requirements stipulated by the HKCAAVQ.
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Validity Period

It represents the period of time in which an approved accreditation
status is effective as stipulated in the accreditation report. For
the QR, a validity period refers to the registered period of a
qualification. Within the validity period, the qualification will be
recognised by the QF.

This glossary aims to provide a general elaboration of the terms used in this report
or by the HKCAAVQ to readers from all walks of life. It is by no means an academic
or philosophical attempt to analyse the concepts or connotations for any particular
purpose, and is not exhaustive in its elaboration and in the list of terms.
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